
�
�

v1�2014�

AGENDA��
�

Meeting� Transport�Committee�

Date� Wednesday�10�December�2014�

Time� 10.00�am�

Place� Chamber,�City�Hall,�The�Queen's�
Walk,�London,�SE1�2AA�

Copies�of�the�reports�and�any�attachments�may�be�found�at��
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/transport��
�
Most�meetings�of�the�London�Assembly�and�its�Committees�are�webcast�live�at�
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts�where�you�can�also�view�past�
meetings.�
�
Members�of�the�Committee�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM�(Chair)�
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
Victoria�Borwick�AM�
Tom�Copley�AM�
Darren�Johnson�AM�

Steve�O'Connell�AM�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM�
Navin�Shah�AM�
Richard�Tracey�AM�

�

A�meeting�of�the�Committee�has�been�called�by�the�Chair�of�the�Committee�to�deal�with�the�business�

listed�below.��
Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Tuesday�2�December�2014�
�
Further�Information�
If�you�have�questions,�would�like�further�information�about�the�meeting�or�require�special�facilities�
please�contact:�Dale�Langford,�Principal�Committee�Manager;�Telephone:�020�7983�4415;�Email:�
dale.langford@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4458�
�
For�media�enquiries�please�contact�Alison,�Bell,�External�Relations�Manager;�Telephone:�020�7983�
4228;�email:�alison.bell@london.gov.uk.��If�you�have�any�questions�about�individual�items�please�
contact�the�author�whose�details�are�at�the�end�of�the�report.��
�
This�meeting�will�be�open�to�the�public,�except�for�where�exempt�information�is�being�discussed�as�
noted�on�the�agenda.��A�guide�for�the�press�and�public�on�attending�and�reporting�meetings�of�local�
government�bodies,�including�the�use�of�film,�photography,�social�media�and�other�means�is�available�
at�www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.��
�
There�is�access�for�disabled�people,�and�induction�loops�are�available.��There�is�limited�underground�
parking�for�orange�and�blue�badge�holders,�which�will�be�allocated�on�a�first-come�first-served�basis.��
Please�contact�Facilities�Management�on�020�7983�4750�in�advance�if�you�require�a�parking�space�or�
further�information.�



�

�
Certificate�Number:�FS�80233�

If�you,�or�someone�you�know,�needs�a�copy�of�the�agenda,�minutes�or�reports�
in�large�print�or�Braille,�audio,�or�in�another�language,�then�please�call�us�on�
020�7983�4100�or�email�assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.���
�

�
�



�

3�
�

Agenda�
Transport�Committee�
Wednesday�10�December�2014�
�
�

1 Apologies�for�Absence�and�Chair's�Announcements��
�
� To�receive�any�apologies�for�absence�and�any�announcements�from�the�Chair.��

�
�

2 Declarations�of�Interests�(Pages�1�-�4)�
�
� The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�
(a)� Note�the�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members,�as�set�out�in�the�table�at�

Agenda�Item�2,�as�disclosable�pecuniary�interests;��
�
(b)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�disclosable�pecuniary�interests�

in�specific�items�listed�on�the�agenda�and�the�necessary�action�taken�by�the�
Member(s)�regarding�withdrawal�following�such�declaration(s);�and��

�
(c)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�other�interests�deemed�to�be�

relevant�(including�any�interests�arising�from�gifts�and�hospitality�received�
which�are�not�at�the�time�of�the�meeting�reflected�on�the�Authority’s�register�
of�gifts�and�hospitality,�and�noting�also�the�advice�from�the�GLA’s�
Monitoring�Officer�set�out�at�Agenda�Item�2)�and�to�note�any�necessary�
action�taken�by�the�Member(s)�following�such�declaration(s).�

�
�

3 Minutes�(Pages�5�-�46)�
�
� The�Committee�is�recommended�to�confirm�the�minutes�of�the�meeting�of�the�

Transport�Committee�held�on�12�November�2014�to�be�signed�by�the�Chair�as�a�
correct�record.��
�

� The�appendices�to�the�minutes�set�out�on�pages�9�to�44�are�attached�for�Members�and�officers�
only�but�are�available�from�the�following�area�of�the�GLA’s�website:�
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/transport�
�
�

4 Summary�List�of�Actions�(Pages�47�-�50)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact�Dale�Langford,�dale.langford@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�4415�

� �
The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�the�outstanding�actions�arising�from�

previous�meetings�of�the�Committee.�
�
�



�

4�
�

5 Cycling�in�London�(Pages�51�-�52)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat��

Contact:�Lucy�Brant,�lucy.brant@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�5727�
�
The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�the�report,�put�questions�on�cycling�in�
London�to�the�invited�guests�and�note�the�discussion.�
�
�

6 London�TravelWatch�Performance�Monitoring�Report�(Pages�53�-�62)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat��

Contact�Mark�Roberts,�mark.roberts@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�4428�
�
The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�
�
(a) Note�the�financial�outturn�position�of�London�TravelWatch�as�at�

30�September�2014;�and�
��
(b) Note�the�performance�against�the�agreed�objectives�of�London�TravelWatch.�
�
�

7 Transport�Committee�Work�Programme�(Pages�63�-�72)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat��

Contact:�Richard�Berry,�richard.berry@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�4199�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a) Note�its�work�programme�for�2014/15�as�set�out�in�the�report;�and�

��

(b) Delegate�authority�to�the�Chair�to�agree,�in�consultation�with�party�Group�

Lead�Members,�the�Committee’s�report�on�taxi�and�private�hire�services�and�a�

response�to�Network�Rail’s�consultation�on�the�draft�Anglia�Route�Study;�and�
�

(c) Note:�
�

(i) The�letter�from�the�Transport�Commissioner�following�up�the�

Committee’s�response�on�the�Safer�Lorries�Scheme�consultation;�
��

(ii) The�response�to�the�Chiltern�Railways�consultation�on�the�proposed�

changes�to�its�draft�timetable;�and�
�

(iii) The�letter�from�London�City�Airport�following�up�the�Committee’s�joint�

response�with�the�Environment�Committee�on�the�London�Airspace�

Management�Programme�consultation.�
�
�
�



�

5�
�

8 Date�of�Next�Meeting��
�
� The�next�meeting�of�the�Committee�is�scheduled�for�Wednesday�14�January�2015�at�10.00am�

in�the�Chamber.�
�
�

9 Any�Other�Business�the�Chair�Considers�Urgent��
�
�
�



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk
 
 v3/2014�

 

Subject:�Declarations
of
Interests�


Report
to:
 Transport
Committee



Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
10
December
2014�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�details�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�for�noting�as�disclosable�pecuniary�

interests�and�requires�additional�relevant�declarations�relating�to�disclosable�pecuniary�interests,�and�

gifts�and�hospitality�to�be�made.�




2.
 Recommendations
�


2.1 That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
below,
be
noted


as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests1;


2.2 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
disclosable
pecuniary
interests
in
specific

items
listed
on
the
agenda
and
the
necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
regarding


withdrawal
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted;
and


2.3 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
other
interests
deemed
to
be
relevant

(including
any
interests
arising
from
gifts
and
hospitality
received
which
are
not
at
the


time
of
the
meeting
reflected
on
the
Authority’s
register
of
gifts
and
hospitality,
and


noting
also
the
advice
from
the
GLA’s
Monitoring
Officer
set
out
at
below)
and
any

necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
3.1 Relevant�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�are�listed�in�the�table�overleaf:�

                                                 
1�The�Monitoring�Officer�advises�that: Paragraph�10�of�the�Code�of�Conduct�will�only�preclude�a�Member�from�
participating�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�or�being�considered�at,�for�example,�a�meeting�of�the�Assembly,�
where�the�Member�has�a�direct�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�that�particular�matter.�The�effect�of�this�is�
that�the�‘matter�to�be�considered,�or�being�considered’�must�be�about�the�Member’s�interest.�So,�by�way�of�
example,�if�an�Assembly�Member�is�also�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X,�that�Assembly�Member�will�be�
precluded�from�participating�in�an�Assembly�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�the�
Member’s�role�/�employment�as�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X;�the�Member�will�not�be�precluded�from�
participating�in�a�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�an�activity�or�decision�of�London�
Borough�X. 

�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



        

�
 

Member
 Interest

Tony�Arbour�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions��
Gareth�Bacon�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Bexley�
John�Biggs�AM� �
Andrew�Boff�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Victoria�Borwick�AM� Member,�Royal�Borough�of�Kensington�&�Chelsea;��

Deputy�Mayor�
James�Cleverly�AM� Chairman�of�LFEPA;�Chairman�of�the�London�Local�

Resilience�Forum;�substitute�member,�Local�Government�
Association�Fire�Services�Management�Committee�

Tom�Copley�AM� �
Andrew�Dismore�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Len�Duvall�AM� �
Roger�Evans�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions;�Trust�for�London�(Trustee)�
Nicky�Gavron�AM� �
Darren�Johnson�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Jenny�Jones�AM� Member,�House�of�Lords�
Stephen�Knight�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Kit�Malthouse�AM� Deputy�Mayor�for�Business�and�Enterprise;�Deputy�Chair,�

London�Enterprise�Panel;�Chair,�Hydrogen�London;�
Chairman,�London�&�Partners;�Board�Member,�TheCityUK���

Joanne�McCartney�AM� �
Steve�O’Connell�AM� Member,�LB�Croydon;�MOPAC�Non-Executive�Adviser�for�

Neighbourhoods�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM� �
Murad�Qureshi�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM� �
Navin�Shah�AM� �
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Richard�Tracey�AM� Chairman�of�the�London�Waste�and�Recycling�Board;�

Mayor's�Ambassador�for�River�Transport������
Fiona�Twycross�AM� Member,�LFEPA�

 

[Note:�LB�-�London�Borough;�LFEPA�-�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority;��
MOPAC�–�Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime]�

�
3.2 Paragraph�10�of�the�GLA’s�Code�of�Conduct,�which�reflects�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Localism�

Act�2011,�provides�that:��
�

- where�an�Assembly�Member�has�a�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�
or�being�considered�or�at��

�

(i)� a�meeting�of�the�Assembly�and�any�of�its�committees�or�sub-committees;�or��
�

(ii)� any�formal�meeting�held�by�the�Mayor�in�connection�with�the�exercise�of�the�Authority’s�
functions��

�

- they�must�disclose�that�interest�to�the�meeting�(or,�if�it�is�a�sensitive�interest,�disclose�the�fact�
that�they�have�a�sensitive�interest�to�the�meeting);�and��

�

Page 2



        

-� must�not�(i)�participate,�or�participate�any�further,�in�any�discussion�of�the�matter�at�the�
meeting;�or�(ii)�participate�in�any�vote,�or�further�vote,�taken�on�the�matter�at�the�meeting�

�

UNLESS�
�

-� they�have�obtained�a�dispensation�from�the�GLA’s�Monitoring�Officer�(in�accordance�with�
section�2�of�the�Procedure�for�registration�and�declarations�of�interests,�gifts�and�hospitality�–�
Appendix�5�to�the�Code).����

�

3.3 Failure�to�comply�with�the�above�requirements,�without�reasonable�excuse,�is�a�criminal�offence;�as�is�

knowingly�or�recklessly�providing�information�about�your�interests�that�is�false�or�misleading.�

3.4 In�addition,�the�Monitoring�Officer�has�advised�Assembly�Members�to�continue�to�apply�the�test�that�
was�previously�applied�to�help�determine�whether�a�pecuniary�/�prejudicial�interest�was�arising�-�

namely,�that�Members�rely�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�whether�a�member�of�the�public,�with�

knowledge�of�the�relevant�facts,�could,�with�justification,�regard�the�matter�as�so�significant�that�it�
would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.��

3.5 Members�should�then�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�in�view�of�their�interests�and�

the�interests�of�others�close�to�them,�they�should�participate�in�any�given�discussions�and/or�
decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�It�remains�the�responsibility�of�individual�Members�to�

make�further�declarations�about�their�actual�or�apparent�interests�at�formal�meetings�noting�also�

that�a�Member’s�failure�to�disclose�relevant�interest(s)�has�become�a�potential�criminal�offence.�

3.6 Members�are�also�required,�where�considering�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�

from�whom�they�have�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25�within�the�

previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�to�
disclose�the�existence�and�nature�of�that�interest�at�any�meeting�of�the�Authority�which�they�attend�

at�which�that�business�is�considered.��

3.7 The�obligation�to�declare�any�gift�or�hospitality�at�a�meeting�is�discharged,�subject�to�the�proviso�set�
out�below,�by�registering�gifts�and�hospitality�received�on�the�Authority’s�on-line�database.�The�on-

line�database�may�be�viewed�here:��

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.��

3.8 If�any�gift�or�hospitality�received�by�a�Member�is�not�set�out�on�the�on-line�database�at�the�time�of�

the�meeting,�and�under�consideration�is�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�

whom�a�Member�has�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25,�Members�
are�asked�to�disclose�these�at�the�meeting,�either�at�the�declarations�of�interest�agenda�item�or�when�

the�interest�becomes�apparent.��

3.9 It�is�for�Members�to�decide,�in�light�of�the�particular�circumstances,�whether�their�receipt�of�a�gift�or�
hospitality,�could,�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�a�member�of�the�public�with�knowledge�of�the�

relevant�facts,�with�justification,�be�regarded�as�so�significant�that�it�would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�

Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.�Where�receipt�of�a�gift�or�hospitality�could�be�so�
regarded,�the�Member�must�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�they�should�participate�in�

any�given�discussions�and/or�decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�

�

4.
 Legal
Implications



4.1 The�legal�implications�are�as�set�out�in�the�body�of�this�report.�




Page 3



        

5.
 Financial
Implications

�

5.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�directly�from�this�report.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� Dale�Langford,�Principal�Committee�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4415�
E-mail:� Dale.Langford@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 4



������������������������������������������������������������������� �� �

�

�
�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


�

MINUTES


�

Meeting:
 Transport
Committee

Date:
 Wednesday
12
November
2014

Time:
 10.00
am

Place:
 Chamber,
City
Hall,
The
Queen's


Walk,
London,
SE1
2AA

�
Copies�of�the�minutes�may�be�found�at:


http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/transport�




�
Present:

�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM�(Chair)�
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
Andrew�Boff�AM�
Victoria�Borwick�AM�
Tom�Copley�AM�
Darren�Johnson�AM�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM�
Navin�Shah�AM�
Richard�Tracey�AM�
�
�

1 Apologies
for
Absence
and
Chair's
Announcements
(Item
1)�



1.1 An�apology�for�absence�was�received�from�Steve�O’Connell�AM,�for�whom�Andrew�Boff�AM�
attended�as�a�substitute�Member.�





2 Declarations
of
Interests
(Item
2)�



2.1 Resolved:




That
the
list
of
Assembly
Members’
appointments,
as
set
out
in
the
tables
at

Agenda
Item
2,
be
noted
as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests.







Agenda Item 3

Page 5



Greater
London
Authority

Transport
Committee


Wednesday
12
November
2014


�

�
�

3 Minutes
(Item
3)�



3.1 Resolved:



That
the
minutes
of
the
meeting
of
the
Transport
Committee
held
on

14
October
2014
be
signed
by
the
Chair
as
a
correct
record.�





4 Summary
List
of
Actions
(Item
4)�



4.1 The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�
4.2 Resolved:




That
the
completed
and
outstanding
actions
arising
from
previous
meetings
of
the

Committee
be
noted.






5 Action
Taken
Under
Delegated
Authority
(Item
5)�




5.1 The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat,�setting�out�action�

taken�by�the�Chair�under�delegated�authority.�

�

5.2 Resolved:





That
the
action
taken
by
the
Chair
under
delegated
authority,
namely
to
agree,
in


consultation
with
party
Group
Lead
Members,
responses
to
consultations
on
the


Transport
Select
Committee
Inquiry
into
small
airports,
London
Airspace


Management
Programme
and
London
Overground
extension
to
Barking
Riverside,�
be
noted.


�

5.3� In�accordance�with�Standing�Order�2.2D,�the�Chair�took�agenda�items�6�and�7�in�a�different�

order�from�that�set�out�on�the�agenda.�





6 Transport
Committee
Work
Programme
(Item
7)�



6.1 The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�
6.2 Resolved:





(a) That
the
work
programme
for
2014/15,
as
set
out
in
the
report,
be
noted;







(b) That
authority
be
delegated
to
the
Chair
to
agree,
in
consultation
with
party


Group
Lead
Members,
a
response
to
Network
Rail’s
consultation
on
the
draft


South
East
Route:
Sussex
Area
Route
Study.


Page 6



Greater
London
Authority

Transport
Committee


Wednesday
12
November
2014


�

�
�

7 Door-to-door
Transport
Services
(Item
6)�



7.1 The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�as�background�to�

putting�questions�on�taxi�and�private�hire�services�to�the�following�invited�guests:�

• Leon�Daniels,�Managing�Director�of�Surface�Transport,�TfL;�

• Peter�Blake,�Director�of�Service�Operations,�TfL;�

• Spencer�Palmer,�Director�Transport�and�Mobility,�London�Councils;�

• Ewan�Jones,�Deputy�Chief�Executive,�Community�Transport�Association;�

• Faryal�Velmi,�Director,�Transport�for�All;�and�

• Joan�Hunt,�door-to-door�service�user.�
�

7.2 A�transcript�of�the�discussion�is�attached�at�Appendix
1.�
�
7.3 Resolved:




(a) That
the
report
and
discussion
with
invited
guests
door-to-door
transport


services
be
noted;
and�

�

(b) That
authority
be
delegated
to
the
Chair,
in
consultation
with
the
party
Group

Lead
Members,
to
agree
the
Committee’s
output
from
its
work
on

door-to-door
transport.�





8 Date
of
Next
Meeting
(Item
8)�



8.1� The�next�meeting�of�the�Committee�was�scheduled�for�Wednesday�10�December�2014�at�

10.00am�in�the�Chamber,�City�Hall.�





9 Any
Other
Business
the
Chair
Considers
Urgent
(Item
9)�



9.1� There�was�no�other�business.�





10 Close
of
Meeting
�



10.1� The�meeting�ended�at�12.18pm.�





�
�
�
�

Page 7



Greater
London
Authority

Transport
Committee


Wednesday
12
November
2014


�

�
�

�
�
�
�
� � � �
Chair�� � Date�
�
Contact
Officer:
 Dale�Langford,�Principal�Committee�Manager;�Telephone:�020�7983�4415;�

Email:�dale.langford@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4458�
�

Page 8



 

 

Appendix 1 
Transport	Committee	-	12	November	2014	

	
Agenda	Item	6	-	Door-to-door	Transport	Services		

	

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Let�us�move�to�our�main�item,�which�is�looking�at�door-to-door�

transport�services�in�London.��This�is�a�topic�we�have�done�a�number�of�pieces�of�work�on�over�the�last�few�

years�and�we�felt�it�was�timely�to�revisit�it.�

�

First�of�all,�can�I�welcome�our�guests�who�are�here�today?��We�have�Leon�Daniels,�who�is�the�Managing�

Director�of�Surface�Transport�at�Transport�for�London�(TfL)�in�charge�of�this,�amongst�many�other�services.��

Welcome,�Leon.��Thank�you�for�joining�us�today.��We�have�with�you�Peter�Blake,�who�is�the�Director�of�Service�

Operations�at�TfL.��You�are�in�charge�of�door-to-door�services�as�well.��Welcome�along.��Spencer�Palmer�is�

from�London�Councils,�which�obviously�administers�a�number�of�these�services.��Welcome�along.��Ewan�Jones�is�

on�his�way.��He�has�had�a�bit�of�a�delay�in�transport.��Ewan�is�the�Deputy�Chief�Executive�of�the�Community�

Transport�Association.��Hopefully,�he�can�give�us�a�national�perspective�on�all�of�this.��We�then�have�

Faryal�Velmi,�who�is�Director�of�Transport�for�All.��Welcome�back�before�the�Committee.��With�you�today�we�

have�Joan�Hunt,�who�is�a�door-to-door�service�user.��She�uses�all�of�these�services�and�we�are�going�to�get�

some�insight�into�what�it�is�like�as�a�user�of�these�services.��Joan,�thank�you�so�much�for�coming�along�today.��

You�are�very�welcome.�

�

I�am�going�to�kick�off�by�looking�at�Dial-a-Ride�to�start�off�with.��What�I�would�like�to�start�off�with�is�to�ask�

Joan�and�Faryal�from�the�point�of�view�of�a�user�of�these�services�and�obviously,�Faryal,�the�people�that�you�

represent.��What�has�the�performance�been�like�in�recent�times�with�Dial-a-Ride�and�what�is�your�experience�of�

the�service?���

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Yes.��I�will�just�say�firstly�that�it�is�really�important�to�say�as�a�

preamble�that�door-to-door�services�-�and�by�that�I�mean�Dial-a-Ride,�Taxicard�and�community�transport�

services�-�are�just�vitally�important�for�disabled�and�older�Londoners.��In�many�cases,�they�provide�a�lifeline�

which�enables�people�to�go�out�and�live�independently.��In�that,�they�play�a�really�important�role�in�maintaining�

people’s�health�and�wellbeing.��Therefore,�they�are�vitally�important�services�and�I�am�very�pleased�to�see�the�

Committee�discussing�and�putting�a�spotlight�on�these�services�today.�

�

Dial-a-Ride�is�absolutely�a�well-used�and�loved�service�by�older�and�disabled�people�in�our�city.��Definitely,�it�

continues�to�do�a�large�volume�of�trips�and�gets�many�people�out�and�about.��Certainly�from�what�we�hear�

through�our�advice�line�and�also�anecdotally�from�travelling�around�London�and�speaking�and�listening�to�

disabled�and�older�groups,�on�the�whole,�people�are�happy�with�the�service.�

�

However,�there�are�some�stubborn�issues�which�keep�on�cropping�up�and�problems�that�people�do�experience.��

If�I�can�just�maybe�say�a�few,�sometimes�getting�through�to�the�call�centre�can�be�an�issue�at�peak�times.��

Refusal�of�trips�can�be�a�problem�with�people�not�getting�the�trips�they�want�or�only�getting�one-way�trips.��

Also,�a�big�bugbear�for�people�-�and�it�has�been�for�many�years�and�it�is�not�necessarily�a�new�thing�-�is�the�

distance�that�you�can�travel.��There�is�a�five-mile�radius.��If�you�live�in�outer�London�-�if�you�live�on�the�

outskirts�of�Bromley,�for�example�-�five�miles�will�not�take�you�that�far.��If�you�live�in�Camden,�it�will.��It�will�

encompass�your�local�high�street,�etc.��That�has�been�an�issue�that�people�have.�

�

Page 9



 

 

I�would�say�that�generally,�when�we�have�made�complaints�to�Dial-a-Ride�about�services,�we�do�feel�there�is�a�

genuine�will�to�resolve�them�and�we�are�happy�to�say�that�we�can�easily�access�the�management�of�Dial-a-Ride�

to�try�to�iron�out�complaints.��That�is�important�to�say�as�well.�

�

Overall�I�would�say,�looking�to�the�future�for�Dial-a-Ride,�whilst�we�believe�that�contracting�out�services�is�

good�and�it�increases�the�reach�of�Dial-a-Ride,�we�do�not�feel�that�it�should�be�at�the�expense�of�the�service�

itself.��You�contract�out�to�enhance�the�offer�of�Dial-a-Ride,�but�actually�we�do�not�want�to�see�a�dwindling-

down�of�Dial-a-Ride�and�its�resources�itself.��That�is�a�really�important�point�that�we�would�like�to�make.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��We�are�going�to�come�on�to�some�of�the�future�things.��Faryal,�before�I�

move�on�to�Joan�[Hunt],�at�the�moment,�say�in�the�last�six�months,�some�of�these�issues�are�stubborn�issues�

that�will�not�go�away,�but�do�you�feel�the�service�has�stayed�about�the�same�or�do�you�feel�it�has�perhaps�

deteriorated�slightly�and�you�have�had�more�concerns�and�complaints�or�has�it�improved?�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��There�is�a�steady�experience.��However,�we�did�notice�that�

there�was�a�spike�in�complaints�-�a�40%�spike�-�which�was�picked�up�by�the�Board�of�TfL�and�noted�in�its�

papers,�which�we�did�actually�raise�directly�with�Dial-a-Ride�management.��We�went�to�speak�to�them�about�it�

and�they�offered�us�various�explanations�for�that.��Yes,�again,�we�go�out�and�we�hear�positive�stories�and�then�

we�do�hear�about�the�same�issues.��However,�I�will�say�that�the�stubborn�issues�are�a�problem�because�they�

should�be�resolved�and�the�fact�that�people�keep�on�having�this�repeat�experience�is�not�always�great.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Thank�you,�Faryal.��Joan,�I�wonder�if�you�would�like�to�tell�us�how�you�

find�the�Dial-a-Ride�services�and�any�issues�that�you�and�perhaps�some�of�your�friends�have�with�the�service.�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��Just�Dial-a-Ride�first?�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Just�Dial-a-Ride�to�start�off�with,�yes,�please.�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��I�have�been�with�them�for�many�years�now�and�I�certainly�think�

that�the�service�has�somewhat�gone�downhill,�but�in�the�main�it�is�an�absolute�lifeline�to�us.��It�enables�us�to�

get�out�of�the�house�and�do�a�lot�of�the�things�we�want�to�do.�

�

However,�as�you�said,�it�is�not�totally�accessible�inasmuch�as�you�cannot�always�get�a�trip�or�you�cannot�always�

get�the�time�you�want.��I�mainly�use�the�service�just�to�go�to�see�friends�or�family,�shopping�or�maybe�the�

cinema,�but�they�probably�would�get�me�there�an�hour�too�soon,�which�is�the�only�way�they�could�get�me�

there.��If�you�have�Capital�Call,�they�will�get�you�there�more�or�less�exactly�at�the�time�you�want�and�collect�you�

at�the�time�you�want.��However,�I�am�afraid�Dial-a-Ride�cannot�do�that.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��It�cannot�be�more�flexible�with�your�times?�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��It�has�a�big�turnover.��I�appreciate�that�that�is�the�reason.��

However,�we�could�not�-�any�of�us�-�do�without�it.��For�any�of�us�who�really�need�it,�it�is�a�total�lifeline.�

�

The�booking�service�is�a�problem.��You�are�held�on�the�phone�for�maybe�10�or�15�minutes�and�occasionally,�

when�I�get�through�to�the�booking�clerk,�the�phone�goes�dead�after�she�has�obviously�picked�it�up�and�then�I�

have�to�start�off�with�another�10�or�15�minutes�again�before�I�can�get�through,�which�is�very�annoying.�

�

I�also�agree�totally�about�this�five-mile�limit.��I�do�live�in�central�London,�but�I�cannot�even�get�to�the�West�End�

or�anywhere�that�is�slightly�beyond�the�five-mile�limit�with�Dial-a-Ride,�which�I�would�love�to�do.���

Page 10



 

 

�

Another�thing�is�with�the�co-opting�of�other�services�if�they�cannot�take�you�out�in�a�Dial-a-Ride�bus.��Quite�

recently,�I�went�to�the�Old�Vic.��I�managed�to�get�there�with�them,�but�they�sent�a�taxi�to�bring�me�home.��It�

should�have�been�there�at�5.05pm.��It�was�not�there�at�5.35pm.��You�have�to�wait�15�minutes�before�you�can�

call�them�to�ask�why�your�transport�has�not�arrived.��When�I�called,�apparently�it�was�two�minutes�too�soon�and�

I�had�to�call�back�again.��Then�I�was�told�that�the�taxicab�company�could�not�find�a�taxi�to�send,�but�they�

would�keep�looking.��By�this�time,�it�was�dark�and�it�was�cold.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��What�did�you�do?��You�were�stranded?�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��I�just�was�not�prepared�to�wait�in�the�hopes�that�something�would�

turn�up�and�I�took�an�ordinary�cab�and�got�a�receipt.��Hopefully,�I�will�get�that�refunded�by�Dial-a-Ride�at�

some�point.�

�

However,�there�are�things,�especially�when�you�are�in�a�wheelchair�and�you�are�totally�dependent�on�these�

people�who�are�coming�to�get�you.��It�makes�a�big�difference.��Thank�you�very�much.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Thank�you,�Joan.��That�is�very�powerful�indeed.��I�wonder�if�I�could�

move�to�Leon�to�start�off�with�and�how�he�would�respond�to�that.��It�is�very�powerful,�rather�than�just�reading�

it�and�looking�at�statistics,�to�actually�hear�from�a�user�about�what�it�is�like�to�be�stranded,�perhaps�after�they�

have�been�out�to�the�theatre�or�something.��We�know�there�has�been�an�increase�in�complaints�going�up.��It�is�

159�complaints�per�100,000�Dial-a-Ride�journeys,�a�66%�increase�from�the�same�period�last�year.��Do�you�want�

to�talk�us�through�that�and�respond�to�some�of�the�points�Joan�has�made?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��Thank�you.��Yes,�I�will.�

�

Just�in�advance�before�I�do,�during�the�course�of�this�morning�I�am�sure�we�will�talk�and�use�the�words�‘review’�

and�‘investigation’�and�so�on.��I�would�just�like�to�state�that�there�is�absolutely�no�intention�from�our�side�to�

make�any�changes�to�Dial-a-Ride�that�would�reduce�the�volume�of�service�we�are�currently�providing.��In�fact,�

if�anything�-�and�we�will�hopefully�come�on�to�this�later�-�our�main�mission�is�to�be�able�to�carry�more�people�

for�the�same�money,�not�carry�the�current�people�for�less�money.��As�I�hope�we�will�be�able�to�explore�later,�we�

are�particularly�interested�not�just�in�the�people�who�are�using�the�service�but�the�people�who�might�be�able�to�

use�the�service�if�we�made�certain�changes.��Just�in�case�we�use�the�word�‘review’�as�shorthand�in�future,�for�

the�record,�this�is�about�increasing�our�reach,�not�decreasing�it.�

�

In�response�to�the�questions,�the�spike�in�complaints�is�pretty�well�all�down�to�the�service�delivered�by�taxi�and�

private�hire.��The�current�run-rate�for�complaints�is�about�1�per�1,000�journeys�provided�by�Dial-a-Ride�and�its�

contractors�and�it�is�about�8�complaints�per�1,000�services�provided�by�taxi.��Just�as�Joan�has�described,�it�is�

exactly�what�happened.��The�bus�took�you�there�and�the�taxi�failed�to�bring�you�back,�for�which�we�apologise.��

Of�course�we�will�deal�with�your�refund.�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��Thank�you.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��There�is�no�doubt�that�

the�weaknesses�in�the�system�of�course,�very�clearly,�are�the�arrangements�for�booking�and�-�just�as�Joan�has�

described�-�waiting�too�long�for�the�phone�to�be�answered,�sometimes�being�kicked�out�of�the�system�and�

having�to�start�all�over�again�and�indeed�-�just�as�you�have�described�-�being�hung�on�the�end�of�a�piece�of�

bureaucracy�that�says�you�have�phoned�two�minutes�too�early�to�complain�that�you�have�not�yet�been�

collected,�which�is�easily�the�most�unsympathetic�call�I�have�heard�all�morning.�

Page 11



 

 

�

I�would�say�that�this�is�a�system�which�is,�clearly,�provided�free�at�the�point�of�use.��There�is,�therefore,�

inevitably�sometimes,�when�the�system�is�overwhelmed�by�more�callers�than�we�have�resource�to�answer�the�

calls�and�indeed�more�demand�for�services�than�we�have�buses�and�drivers�to�deliver�them.��That�is�why�we�will�

from�time�to�time�ask�the�indulgence�of�the�users�and�say,�“We�cannot�get�you�there�for�2.00pm,�but�if�you�do�

not�mind�getting�there�for�1.30pm,�yes,�we�can”,�because�that�is�our�way�of�trying�to�get�you�there�in�time�

with�what�is�effectively�a�finite�resource.�

�

We�think�that�the�levels�of�satisfaction�are�broadly�very�good.��People�appreciate�the�service�enormously.��

People�are�glad�that�it�exists.��It�is�very�much�our�intention�that�the�service�will�continue�and,�as�I�said,�we�will�

work�very�hard�in�order�to�try�to�carry�more�people�for�the�same�money.��We�will�try�to�carry�more�people�as�

efficiently�and�as�courteously�and�as�sensitively�as�we�can.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��I�do�not�think�you,�surely,�can�blame�all�of�the�complaints�on�the�issue�

of�when�you�have�had�to�get�taxis�to�fill�in�a�gap.��We�know�that�the�percentage�of�Dial-a-Ride�trip�requests�

for�this�quarter�is�below�target�and�you�are�not�fulfilling�the�trip�requests�as�well.��Clearly,�something�is�going�

wrong�with�the�service,�isn’t�it?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��There�are�two�parts�to�

that.��What�I�was�saying�was�in�response�to�the�query�about�the�increase�in�complaints.��The�rate�of�complaints�

for�journeys�completed�by�taxi�is�very�much�higher�than�the�level�of�complaints�for�those�services�provided�by�

the�in-house�fleet�or�the�contracted-out�fleet.��That�level�of�complaint�is�very�much�lower,�as�it�happens,�than�

on�mainstream�public�transport.��Nevertheless,�it�does�not�really�count�because,�if�you�are�a�vulnerable�user,�

one�complaint�is�one�too�many�and�we�accept�that.��My�point�simply�was�that�the�spike�in�complaints�was�

driven�off�the�service�provided�by�the�taxi�and�private�hire�side.�

�

That�being�said,�there�is�a�finite�resource�of�drivers,�buses�and�our�ability�to�deliver�trips.��There�is�not�an�

infinite�supply�of�either�and,�therefore,�at�times�of�peak�usage�there�will�be�those�occasions�when�we�cannot�

offer�to�complete�the�trips�that�people�have�requested�from�us.��However,�our�number�one�rule�is�that�if�we�get�

you�out,�we�surely�must�bring�you�back.��It�is�completely�unacceptable�to�say�that�we�did�50%�of�the�job�

because,�frankly,�taking�you�out�and�having�you�marooned�at�the�far�side�is�entirely�unacceptable.��One�of�our�

priorities�-�absolutely�-�is�that�if�we�get�you�out,�we�must�bring�you�back.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��What�about�the�issue�of�a�shortage�of�drivers?��I�understand�there�are�

about�20�driver�vacancies�at�the�moment.��Are�you�planning�to�fill�these?��I�understand�there�is�a�recruitment�

freeze�at�the�moment.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��I�am�afraid�that�we�do�

compete�in�the�labour�market,�as�you�might�imagine,�for�other�sorts�of�driving�jobs.��The�vast�majority�of�the�

services�are�provided�by�our�own�in-house�fleet�and�those�are,�to�some�extent,�the�very�last�remaining�London�

Transport�publicly�employed�paying�conditions�staff,�many�of�whom�have�been�with�us�for�a�very�long�time.��

The�situation�across�London�is�different,�as�you�might�imagine.��We�are�competing�in�a�pool�for�labour.�

�

The�sort�of�people�who�like�to�come�to�work�for�us�on�Dial-a-Ride�are�those�drivers�who�are�perhaps�a�little�bit�

older�and�who�no�longer�want�to�be�in�the�cut-and-thrust�of�driving�a�big�bus�or�a�big�lorry�in�London�and�for�

whom�providing�this�service�is�not�only�nice�for�them�but�is�a�nice�experience�and�they�are�working�with�people�

who�are�often�extremely�chatty�and�happy�to�be�on�the�bus�and�are�indeed�grateful�for�the�service.��There�is�a�

particular�sort�of�person�who�likes�to�be�a�Dial-a-Ride�driver.��I�am�afraid�that�just�going�out�and�recruiting�in�

Page 12



 

 

the�mainstream�is�not�terribly�effective�because�what�happens�is�that�no�sooner�are�they�with�us�than�they�

move�on�to�something�else.�

�

However,�we�have�a�huge�opportunity�to�provide�these�services�by�using�other�local�providers.��We�extensively�

use�other�providers�-�community�transport�operators�and�so�on�-�who�are�already�in�the�community�with�their�

own�vehicles�and�their�own�staff�and�who�already�have�their�own�work�that�they�do.��It�is�often�cost-effective�

for�us�to�ask�them�to�provide�the�services�for�our�customers.��Frankly,�any�slack�there�might�be�in�the�shortage�

of�drivers�ought�to�be�easily�accommodated�by�some�of�our�subcontractors,�all�of�whom�we�are�in�discussions�

with�about�what�their�capacity�might�be.��Their�capacity�is�not�infinite�and�it�is�patchy�across�London,�but�since�

they�are�already�providing�other�services�in�their�communities�and�since�they�are�social�enterprises�registered�as�

charities,�the�double�advantage�is�that�not�only�are�they�able�to�provide�these�services�and�any�surplus�they�

might�make�is�reinvested�in�those�communities.��Indeed,�the�vehicles�and�the�drivers�they�employ�are�able�to�

do�other�good�things�in�the�community�as�well.��Therefore,�we�are�quite�happy�with�having�to�do�that.��As�I�

say,�we�are�able�to�cope�with�any�driver�shortage�by�flexing�the�amount�of�work�that�is�contracted�out.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��I�understand�that�there�is�industrial�action�going�on�at�the�moment�by�

Dial-a-Ride�staff.��It�is�short�of�a�strike,�but�this�is�through�the�trade�union�Unite.��What�is�the�position�

regarding�that�and�what�impact�is�that�actually�having�on�the�performance�of�the�service?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��I�might�just�defer�to�

Peter�on�the�actual�position�at�the�moment.��My�understanding�is�that�it�is�not�having�a�material�effect�on�our�

ability�to�--�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��No,�it�is�not�impacting�at�the�

moment.��What�you�were�seeing�in�terms�of�the�scheduled�figures�earlier�in�the�year�with�the�industrial�action�

was�that�there�was�an�impact,�which�is�the�reason�we�are�slightly�below�our�target.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��That�is�another�reason?���

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��That�is�primarily�the�reason�why�

we�are�below,�but�we�fully�expect�to�hit�the�target�by�the�end�of�the�year�by�putting�in�the�additional�capacity�

and�working�with�the�co-ordination�of�community�transport�schemes.��However,�at�the�moment�there�is�no�

impact�on�service�delivery.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Thank�you�for�that.��Perhaps�I�can�move�on�and�welcome�Ewan�Jones�-�

sorry,�I�introduced�you�before�you�had�arrived�-�who�is�the�Deputy�Chief�Executive�of�the�Community�

Transport�Association�and�giving�us�a�national�perspective�today.��You�are�very�welcome.�

�

Perhaps�I�could�ask�you�and�Spencer�as�well�what�you�think�the�knock-on�effect�of�all�these�problems�we�have�

heard�about�Dial-a-Ride�are�having�on�the�availability�of�other�door-to-door�services.��	

	

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):	�In�terms�of�the�availability�of�

the�service,�we�have�not�noticed�any�major�transfer.��In�fact,�Taxicard�trips�are�reducing�and�not�increasing.��

Therefore,�we�are�not�seeing�a�transfer.��However,�of�course�there�is�a�minimum�charge�for�Taxicard�journeys�

and�users�who�normally�use�Dial-a-Ride�would�prefer�to�use�it�because�it�is�free�at�the�point�of�service,�as�you�

mentioned�before.��We�have�not�noticed�the�particular�impact�of�these�performance�issues�with�Dial-a-Ride�

impacting�on�the�Taxicard�service.�

�

Page 13



 

 

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Ewan,�do�you�have�any�general�view�on�the�Dial-a-Ride�and�how�it�

compares�to�others�across�the�country?�

�

Ewan	Jones	(Deputy	Chief	Executive,	Community	Transport	Association):��Certainly.��A�number�of�our�

members�who�are�based�in�London�provide�community�transport�services,�but�around�the�UK�a�lot�are�involved�

in�Dial-a-Ride�as�well.��There�are�some�interesting�differences�in�London.��In�particular,�it�is�free.��For�most�of�

the�other�services�there�would�be�some�form�of�a�charge.��Talking�to�members�in�London,�I�suspect�that�when�

Dial-a-Ride�became�free,�it�meant�that�quite�a�few�people�who�might�have�travelled�on�different�types�of�

community�transport�service�had�a�lower-cost�option�and�therefore�started�to�use�Dial-a-Ride.��That�had�a�

knock-on�effect�on�other�community�transport�services.�

�

In�general,�community�transport�operators�are�really�quite�active�in�providing�Dial-a-Ride�in�a�number�of�other�

areas.��For�instance,�in�the�West�Midlands,�the�Ring�and�Ride�service�is�effectively�a�subdivision�of�West�

Midlands�Special�Needs�Transport,�which�itself�is�a�single�community�transport�operator.��A�slightly�different�

version�in�some�ways�more�akin�to�London�is�what�is�going�on�in�Glasgow�and�Strathclyde�at�the�moment,�

where�the�MyBus�service�is�effectively�the�Dial-a-Ride.��It�is�run�primarily�by�an�in-house�fleet�at�Strathclyde�

Partnership�for�Transport,�but�they�do�contract�quite�a�lot�out�to�community�transport.��They�are�currently�

negotiating�a�public�social�partnership�with�the�third�sector�in�a�very�positive�relationship�and�are�trying�to�look�

at�how�they�use�more�of�the�community�sector�to�deliver�a�lot�of�the�dial-a-ride�services.��It�gives�a�higher�

degree�of�flexibility.��It�brings�in�quite�a�high�level�of�training�and�accessibility�in�terms�of�the�services�and�

understanding�users’�needs.�

�

In�other�areas,�for�instance,�like�in�Greater�Manchester,�the�service�is�run�by�Greater�Manchester�Accessible�

Transport�Ltd,�which�is�a�standalone�charitable�organisation.��The�funding�from�the�integrated�transport�

authority�(ITA)�goes�in�there.��That�does�not�meet�all�the�demand,�though,�or�all�the�need,�if�you�like,�

particularly�in�terms�of�the�actual�direction�of�journeys�in�some�cases.��The�Local�Link�services�have�been�set�

up.��They�are�separate.��They�are�accessible�and�available�to�any�member�of�the�public.��The�idea�there�is�that�

there�are�certain�routes�that�public�transport�does�not�meet,�particularly�perhaps�circumferential�rather�than�

radial�routes�in�Manchester.��Even�though�they�are�in�a�quite�heavily�urbanised�area,�people�can�become�quite�

isolated.��They�have�been�trying�to�bring�together�a�mix-and-match�of�different�services�to�meet�different�

needs�to�make�sure�that�this�is�completely�covered.�

�

The�Community�Transport�Association�and�particularly�members�in�London�feel�that�community�transport�

operators�are�well�placed�to�run�dial-a-ride�services.��It�is�an�area�that�a�lot�of�them�have�been�involved�in�for�

many�years.��It�is�where�I�started�off�in�Edinburgh,�for�instance.��They�are�keen�to�work�with�TfL,�with�the�

Assembly�and�with�others�to�be�involved�in�that.�

�

Not�only�are�there�differences�between�different�boroughs�in�London,�but�you�will�find�that�people�have�

different�needs�in�different�areas�within�one�borough.��If�you�live�in�the�west�of�Ealing�or�the�east�of�Ealing,�

your�options�and�requirements�might�be�different.��The�community-based�organisations,�which�are�rooted�in�

the�local�communities�they�serve�and�are�governed�by�them,�are�well�placed�to�participate�in�that�network.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��That�is�very�helpful.��Thank�you.��We�are�going�to�come�on�to�what�the�

service�could�look�like�in�the�future�later�on.��Let�us�move�on�to�look�at�the�issue�of�the�Taxicard�now.���

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��If�I�may�start�with�Joan�about�Taxicard�usage,�you�already�mentioned�some�of�the�

experiences�you�had�in�terms�of�the�Taxicard�service.��Do�you�want�to�add�to�that?��Particularly,�can�you�tell�

the�Committee�how�often�you�use�the�Taxicard�service,�what�problems�you�generally�face,�what�kind�of�

journeys�you�make,�how�long�and�so�on?�

Page 14



 

 

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��I�find�the�Taxicard�service�is�the�most�unreliable.��For�one�thing,�

apparently,�even�if�you�book�in�advance,�the�message�does�not�go�out�to�the�computers�in�the�drivers’�cabs�

until�15�minutes�before�they�are�needed�and�then�it�is�totally�up�to�them�whether�they�accept�it�or�not.��Quite�

often,�you�are�waiting�and�waiting�and�a�cab�never�comes�or�it�comes�half�an�hour�late.��Therefore,�I�very�rarely�

use�the�Taxicard�unless�I�can�absolutely�help�it.�

�

Also,�there�is�a�bit�of�a�problem�with�the�ramps�and�getting�into�the�taxi.��Some�of�them�are�simply�quite�

rickety�and�old�and�it�is�quite�a�job�to�get�the�wheelchair�on.��If�there�is�a�pavement,�I�can�actually�step�on�a�

box�if�they�have�a�box,�but�they�do�not�always�have�one.��I�am�afraid�that�for�me�it�is�the�bottom�of�the�

services�at�the�moment.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��You�try�to�avoid�it�as�best�as�you�can�unless�you�have�to�use�the�Taxicard�service?�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��I�do�try�to�avoid�it,�yes.��I�do.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��It�is�a�very�limited�use�at�all?�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��Very�rarely,�yes.��I�will�say�they�are�extremely�good�if�you�have�to�

go�to�hospital.��If�I�need�to�go�to�hospital�or�an�accident-and-emergency�(A&E),�I�have�always�had�a�taxi�come�

fairly�quickly�and�another�one�to�take�me�back�again.��However,�for�an�ordinary,�everyday�trip�anywhere�to�a�

show�or�anything�that�is�ticketed�or�timed,�I�would�not�think�of�using�them�unless�I�could�get�there�an�hour�

before�and�I�know�that�I�would�be�there�on�time.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��Do�you�recall�any�instances�where�they�have�refused�bookings�for�any�particular�reason?�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��No,�I�do�not�think�I�have�ever�been�refused�a�booking.��Yes,�once.��

I�was�at�Victoria�station.��This�was�when�I�was�still�able�to�walk�with�difficulty.��There�was�not�any�queue�at�

Victoria�Station�and�I�stood�there�with�my�friend,�waiting�for�a�ComCab�-�because�we�are�only�allowed�to�use�

ComCabs�-�to�come�along.��When�one�did�eventually�come,�he�refused�to�take�me�because�he�said�it�was�a�

Saturday�night�and�they�did�not�have�to�take�me�on�a�Saturday�and�they�did�not�have�to�take�Taxicard.��If�that�

is�true�or�not�I�do�not�know,�but�I�did�make�a�complaint�about�it�to�the�Taxicard�people,�but�actually�I�should�

have�complained�to�wherever�the�driver�gets�his�authorisation�from.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Does�Spencer�want�to�comment�on�that?��Are�there�limits�to�when�

Taxicard�is�available�or�should�it�be�able�to�be�used�at�any�time�including�a�Saturday�night?�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):��That�is�right.��No,�they�should�

not�have�been�refusing�journeys.��When�we�are�made�aware�of�it�-�and�I�am�certain�that�if�your�complaint�was�

made�to�us�rather�than�to�the�contractor�-�it�is�right�that�we�are�aware�of�these�issues�and�we�would�fully�

investigate�it.��I�know�that�records�are�kept�of�this�and�we�are�able�to�track�the�incident�and�speak�to�and�deal�

with�the�driver�concerned.��Thankfully,�these�incidents�are�very�rare.��If�they�are�a�ComCab�displaying�the�

‘target’�motif,�they�should�accept�Taxicard�users�at�all�times.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��That�is�interesting.��Unfortunately,�I�do�not�have�any�of�the�details,�but�last�night�after�

People’s�Question�Time�I�met�a�couple�of�people�who�were�complaining�about�the�drivers�refusing�to�take�

bookings.��I�do�not�know�for�what�reasons,�et�cetera,�but�I�will�be�taking�that�up�whenever�I�hear�and�get�more�

details�about�it,�certainly,�whether�this�is�anecdotal�or�not.�

�

Page 15



 

 

Faryal,�do�you�want�to�pick�this�issue�up�as�well�as�generally�comment�upon�the�performance�of�the�Taxicard�

from�your�perspective,�please?�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Sure.��In�2010,�Transport�for�London’s�contribution�to�Taxicard�

was�capped�by�the�Mayor.��Prior�to�that,�ever�since�Taxicard�has�been�operating,�since�the�1980s,�TfL’s�

contribution�to�the�scheme�would�go�up�according�to�usage.��This�cap�has�basically�played�out�and�has�resulted�

in�more�restrictions�in�the�scheme.��Boroughs�and�London�Councils�had�their�own�priorities�and�a�number�of�

cuts�were�imposed�on�the�Taxicard�scheme�after�2010.��These�included�the�fare�rising�from�£1.50�to�£2.50�in�a�

lot�of�places�and�also�the�subsidy�going�down,�which�meant�that�people�travelled�not�as�far�and�paid�more.��

This�has�resulted�in�a�drop�in�usage�and�we�have�seen�and�everyone�has�seen�because�it�is�in�the�public�domain�

that�the�usage�of�Taxicard�has�gone�down�by�20%�last�year.�

�

We�are�really�worried�about�this.��It�is�a�big�concern.��For�many,�many�years�-�decades�-�Taxicard�has�been�a�

much-loved�service�for�disabled�and�older�Londoners.��It�is�unique�to�London�in�many�ways�and�we�believe�that�

it�should�be�maintained.��A�lot�of�these�cuts�to�subsidies�and�increasing�fares�are�meaning�that�people�just�do�

not�use�it�anymore,�which�is�a�real�concern.�

�

In�terms�of�the�contracting�out,�we�believe�the�current�Taxicard�contract�says�that�30%�of�its�services�can�be�

contracted�out�to�minicabs.��That�has�its�own�issues.��On�the�one�hand�it�increases�the�reach�of�the�service,�but�

on�the�other�hand�there�are�sometimes�problems�with�minicab�drivers�not�necessarily�always�having�the�

expertise�in�terms�of�knowledge�about�where�to�go�and�also�reliability�and�training.��That�is�a�problem.�

�

In�the�future,�if�you�would�allow�me�to�say�what�we�would�like�to�see�in�London,�it�is�a�real�levelling-up�of�

Taxicard�provision.��At�the�moment,�it�is�a�bit�of�a�postcode�lottery.��If�you�live�in�Harrow,�the�way�you�are�

assessed�in�terms�of�eligibility�and�how�many�trips�you�get,�et�cetera,�is�one�thing.��If�you�live�in�Croydon,�it�is�

done�in�a�completely�different�way.��There�needs�to�be�a�levelling-up�of�standards,�absolutely.�

�

At�the�end�of�the�day,�the�answer�for�Taxicard�and�Dial-a-Ride�is�more�resources.��They�cannot�be�seen�as�the�

poor�family�relation�in�the�transport�network.��We�need�investment�into�these�services�to�make�them�able�to�

provide�a�good,�decent,�equitable�service�across�the�city.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��If�I�can�move�on�to�the�issue�about�declining�usage,�which�has�been�the�trend�recently�in�

terms�of�the�Taxicard�service,�would�Leon,�Peter�and�Spencer�want�to�pick�up�on�this�issue?��I�believe�London�

Council’s�Transport�and�Environment�Committee�did�some�work�on�it�fairly�recently�as�to�the�reasons�for�

declining�trips.��Similarly,�Leon�and�Peter�might�want�to�tell�us�what�the�reasons�are�and�what�is�being�done�

about�it.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��If�this�question�is�

about�-�such�as�Joan�described�-�a�taxi�driver�declining�a�Taxicard�journey�on�the�grounds�that�it�is�Saturday�

night,�over�and�above�the�sanctions�that�Spencer�on�behalf�of�London�Councils�can�take�in�respect�of�the�

operator.��As�the�licensing�authority�for�black�cab�drivers�and�private�hire�drivers�in�this�city,�we�will�take�action�

against�the�individual�driver�as�well.��Taxi�drivers�are�not�allowed�to�decline�a�fare�that�has�been�legitimately�

hailed,�as�it�were,�or�booked�except�for�certain�very�narrow�and�specific�reasons.��There�is�no�reason�why�a�

Taxicard�user�who�has�made�that�booking�should�be�treated�any�differently�or�any�worse�than�somebody�who�

is�paying�cash�on�a�normal�basis.��If�it�is�the�case�that�on�a�Saturday�night�the�taxis�are�busy�with�cash�

customers,�it�is�the�give-and-take�and�rise-and-fall�of�being�a�taxi�driver�or�private�hire�driver�in�London.��We�

will�undertake�that�if�there�are�any�substantiated�complaints�in�respect�of�drivers�refusing�a�fare,�we�will�look�at�

disciplinary�action�as�far�as�the�driver’s�licence�is�concerned�as�well.�

�

Page 16



 

 

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):��If�I�can�just�state�to�start�with,�

although�Taxicard�is�a�service�that�does�not�suit�all,�I�think�Faryal�would�confirm�that�it�does�suit�some�people�

and�we�have�over�76,000�members�currently�using�the�Taxicard�service�and�around�a�million�trips�per�year.��In�

terms�of�performance,�96%�of�our�performance�targets�for�arrival�are�being�met�currently�in�London�across�all�

the�boroughs.��Generally�speaking,�for�that�level�of�journeys�we�are�achieving�our�performance�standards�in�

terms�of�service.�

�

However,�for�a�number�of�reasons,�we�cannot�guarantee�a�taxi�in�every�circumstance�because�of�the�way�the�

journeys�are�issued�to�taxis�that�are�often�doing�other�business�and�hail-and-ride�as�well.��However,�what�we�

are�doing�is�we�are�meeting�our�contractual�targets�in�terms�of�arriving�on�time.��That�is�within�15�minutes�for�

advance�bookings�and�within�30�minutes�for�as-soon-as-possible�bookings.��We�are�achieving,�as�I�say,�over�

95%�of�our�target�across�the�board.�

�

As�I�said,�we�also�have�a�low�level�of�complaints.��We�have�a�low�level�of�queries�compared�to�the�number�of�

journeys�we�are�providing.��We�do�investigate�every�complaint.�

�

On�the�subject�of�private�hire,�one�of�the�things�we�have�done�over�the�years�to�improve�the�service�and�to�

improve�availability�-�because�we�know�that�black�taxis�are�not�as�available�in�some�areas�as�much�as�others�-�

we�have�now�reached�our�target�this�year�of�providing�private�hire�availability�of�minicabs�in�every�London�

borough.��That�is�giving�more�choice,�more�availability�and�more�service�and�hopefully�will�improve�and�lead�to�

us�achieving�better�against�our�targets�in�the�future.�

�

However,�on�the�subject�of�training�and�private�hire�vehicles,�obviously�private�hire�vehicles�do�not�suit�all�

users�in�terms�of�accessibility.��Those�who�prefer�to�have�a�certain�vehicle�can�actually�request�that�and�have�

that�noted�on�their�record.��However,�all�of�the�private�hire�contractors�who�work�for�us�receive�driver�training.��

As�Leon�[Daniels]�mentioned,�if�we�are�aware�of�any�issues�or�concerns�about�a�particular�driver,�we�will�take�

that�very�seriously.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��What�I�want�to�hear�about�is�the�reason�or�reasons�behind�this�decline,�which�has�been�

pretty�continuous�over�the�last�year�or�so.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��The�usage,�yes.�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):��Yes,�apologies.��As�Faryal�

[Velmi]�mentioned,�the�main�reason�was�when�boroughs�about�four�or�five�years�ago�now�significantly�changed�

the�level�of�subsidy�that�users�achieved�and�this�was�mainly�around�capping�unsustainable�growth�in�the�

service.��That�had�the�biggest�impact�on�users.�

�

We�have�not�done�any�detailed�research�into�the�reasons�that�users�have�shifted�or�changed�perhaps�their�

travel�habits.��However,�the�report�you�mentioned�that�went�to�our�committee�in�the�summer�stated�some�

likely�reasons.��The�likely�reasons�are�that�perhaps�they�consider�it�to�be�unaffordable�now�and�perhaps�they�

are�shifting�across�to�Dial-a-Ride,�which�is�a�free�service.��Perhaps�it�is�because�of�improvements�in�bus�

accessibility�and�public�transport�accessibility.��More�people�are�choosing�to�use�public�transport�instead�of�

door-to-door.��There�are�a�number�of�possible�reasons,�but�we�have�not�carried�out�any�detailed�work�into�

finding�out�why�exactly�journeys�are�declining.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��Whilst�the�review�into�the�whole�of�this�provision�is�part�of�the�current�understanding�and�

strategy,�should�there�not�be�a�proper�systematic�survey�or�some�research�done�jointly,�possibly,�between�TfL�

and�London�Councils�to�see�what�the�factors�are�behind�this�decline�in�trips�by�taxi�service?�

Page 17



 

 

�

That�also�brings�me�to�this�issue�about�the�falling�usage.��There�was�in�the�past�two�years�a�pretty�significant�

underspend;�in�the�region�of�£2�million,�I�believe.��Can�you�tell�us�what�the�likely�budget�proposal�is�for�2016�

for�this�particular�service?�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):��On�the�budget�provision�and�

the�future�budget�provision�for�Taxicard,�TfL�provides�a�large�element�of�the�funding�for�the�scheme�and�we�

are�currently�in�the�second�year�of�a�three-year�agreement�with�Transport�for�London.��We�are�not�aware�of�

any�reduction�in�the�level�of�funding�being�made�available�to�Taxicard�from�Transport�for�London.��Therefore,�

we�have�no�plans�to�reduce�the�level�of�service�available.�

�

However,�what�we�are�seeking�to�do�is�to�achieve�further�efficiencies�and�further�improvements�with�our�

contractors,�developing�an�online�portal�to�allow�online�bookings�and�bookings�through�smartphones.��We�are�

also�looking�at�internal�administration�efficiencies�as�well�where�we�can.��One�of�the�things�that�has�been�

highlighted�as�London�Councils,�although�this�scheme�being�discretionary�does�have�differences�from�borough�

to�borough,�we�are�aiming�to�achieve�more�consistency�of�approach�for�members�and�really�just�to�improve�the�

service.��However,�in�terms�of�funding,�we�are�not�expecting�the�level�of�funding�to�be�reduced�in�the�coming�

years.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��I�should�say�that�the�

TfL�board�will�shortly�see�a�new�ten-year�business�plan�from�TfL�and�Members�will�see�that�shortly.��It�would�

be�inappropriate�to�comment�about�what�is�in�the�business�plan,�but�it�is�fair�to�say�that�I�am�not�aware�of�any�

material�change�to�the�funding�for�Taxicard�in�the�business�plan.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��Just�one�last�question�now�about�the�knock-on�effects�of�the�declining�usage�of�the�

Taxicard�service�on�community�transport.���

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):��Again,�we�are�not�aware.��We�

have�not�looked�into�this�area�in�any�great�detail�to�date.��However,�it�might�be�something�we�can�look�at�and�I�

would�be�willing�to�work�with�TfL�to�see�if�we�can�find�out�what�impact�the�decline�in�usage�of�Taxicard�is�

having�on�other�services.��However,�as�I�say,�the�agencies�that�run�those�services�have�not�highlighted�any�

particular�shift�to�their�services�as�a�result�of�this.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��Thank�you.��Faryal,�you�wanted�to�comment?�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Yes.��We�definitely�hear�that�more�people�are�using�Dial-a-Ride�

as�a�result,�basically,�again,�primarily�because�of�cost.��They�are�giving�it�a�go�if�they�have�not�used�Dial-a-Ride�

in�a�long�time.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��Thank�you.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Thank�you,�Navin.��We�are�going�to�move�on�to�look�at�Capital�Call�

now.���

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Capital�Call�is�the�subsidised�service�in�ten�boroughs�where�there�is�a�shortage�of�taxis.��

Faryal,�could�we�start�off�with�you?��You�have�given�comments�on�the�other�services.��What�is�Transport�for�

All’s�view�of�the�current�Capital�Call�service?�

�

Page 18



 

 

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Capital�Call�has�been�around�for�quite�a�long�time�now�in�

London.��It�is�an�established,�accessible�option�for�many�disabled�and�older�Londoners�in�the�boroughs�it�

operates�in.��We�were�alarmed�to�hear�of�TfL’s�plans�to�close�the�scheme,�especially�as�there�was�not�any�

alternative�proposed�either�as�a�service�or�to�do�with�the�£700,000�budget�that�Capital�Call�currently�has.��We�

know�there�was�a�consultation�that�was�held.��We�have�not�seen�the�results�of�that�consultation.��However,�we�

would�be�very�much�against�the�closure�of�Capital�Call�unless�there�would�be�a�viable�alternative�proposed.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��You�do�not�see�it�being�an�obsolete�service�on�the�basis�that�another�alternative�has�

not�been�put�forward,�basically?�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��There�have�been�over�a�few�years�problems�with�Capital�Call.��

The�service�quality�in�terms�of�bookings,�for�example,�has�declined.��We�have�had�issues�for�people�who�have�

contacted�us.��Yes,�there�have�been�problems.�

�

However,�there�is�a�bit�of�an�issue�here�about�what�we�do�when�a�service�is�perhaps�not�performing�that�well.��

We�have�communicated�these�issues�to�TfL,�but�that�should�not�be�an�excuse�to�do�away�with�it.��One�should�

look�at�how�the�service�can�be�improved�for�users.��Certainly�when�we�contacted�our�members�and�supporters�

across�London�who�use�Capital�Call�-�and�we�facilitated�a�consultation�event,�actually,�with�TfL�where�users�

spoke�about�what�it�meant�to�them�-�there�was�a�real�passion�about�the�service.��We�need�to�see�improvements�

in�it�that�will�raise�user�levels.��What�happens�is�perhaps�the�service�user�levels�are�not�great�and�then�the�stats�

say,�“People�are�not�using�it”,�and�it�becomes�a�vicious�circle.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Self-fulfilling,�yes.�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��We�do�not�buy�that�as�an�excuse�to�do�away�with�the�service.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��The�view�from�your�users�is�very�much�that�they�want�the�service�retained�but�

improved?�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Yes.��There�are�lots�of�views.��I�have�been�at�Transport�for�All�

(TfA)�for�ten�years�and�in�that�time�I�have�seen�so�many�different�reviews�and�plans�about�what�to�do�with�

door-to-door�transport.��No�one�has�ever�come�up�with�viable�solutions�and�alternatives�that�would�be�

palatable�to�disabled�and�older�users.��Stop�saying�that�you�are�going�to�cut�and�replace�services�when�you�do�

not�actually�offer�viable�alternatives.��I�will�say�that�again�with�Capital�Call.��Let�us�see�what�the�alternative�is�

and�we�will�judge�that�and�look�at�it.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Thank�you.��Joan,�I�take�it,�given�that�you�are�based�in�central�London,�you�have�not�

made�use�of�Capital�Call?�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��Yes,�south�London.��I�am�passionate�about�Capital�Call.��To�me,�it�

is�by�far�the�supreme�service.��There�is�always�availability.��You�are�never�turned�down.��The�cab�arrives�on�

time,�both�taking�you�and�bringing�you�back.��It�just�has�everything.��I�am�most�surprised�that�you�had�so�many�

reports�that�things�are�not�going�well.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Your�experience�has�been�very�positive,�then,�with�Capital�Call?�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��Absolutely.��With�the�booking�service,�you�may�hang�on�for�a�

short�while�but�if�you�are�not�getting�through�they�say,�“Please�would�you�dial�0,�leave�your�number�and�

Page 19



 

 

address�and�a�short�message�about�where�you�want�to�go�and�we�will�get�back�to�you�within�half�an�hour”,�

which�they�do.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Brilliant.�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��Only�once�has�that�ever�failed�me�and�I�have�been�with�them�for�

at�least�four�years.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��All�right.��That�is�really�useful�to�hear.��We�will�put�some�of�these�things�to�Leon�

[Daniels].��What�was�the�outcome�of�the�recent�consultation�on�the�proposal�to�close�Capital�Call?��Peter,�do�

you�want�to�comment?�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��Leon�has�passed�this�one�to�me.��

We�are�still�working�through�the�outcome�of�that�consultation,�but�it�is�probably�worth�going�through�the�

rationale�for�undertaking�the�consultation.�

�

Capital�Call�was�established�back�in�2003�in�ten�boroughs�where�there�were�relatively�low�rates�of�taxis.��That�

was�the�rationale.��What�has�happened�in�the�ten�years�or�so�since�is�that�actually�the�numbers�of�taxis�in�those�

boroughs�have�increased�markedly�to�levels�that�reflect�the�rest�of�London.��The�situation�has�changed.��We�

have�also�seen�a�reduction�in�general�membership�use�and�we�have�also�seen�a�reduction�in�usage�generally.�

�

What�we�undertook�during�the�early�part�of�the�summer�was�a�consultation�to�ask�actually�whether�this�is�still�

relevant.��We�received�a�lot�of�responses.��Clearly,�a�lot�of�users�responded�saying,�“We�use�this.��We�value�this�

service”.��Also,�we�had�a�lot�of�responses�from�other�stakeholders�saying,�“We�are�not�really�sure�where�this�sits�

now�in�the�mix�given�that�the�original�basis�for�establishing�this�back�in�2003�has�significantly�moved�on”.��We�

are�still�going�through�that�in�terms�of�making�a�decision�and�we�will�be�coming�forward�as�soon�as�we�can.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��What�do�you�say�to�Joan’s�[Hunt]�point?��She�likes�the�flexibility�of�this�service�and�

there�are�not�the�same�types�of�restrictions�as�there�are�with�the�other�two�services.�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��We�have�skirted�around�this�thus�

far.��There�is�a�mix�of�services�out�there,�some�that�people�value�higher�than�others.��It�relates�to�their�

individual�circumstances.��What�we�need�to�do�collectively�is�to�ask�how�this�mix�hangs�together.��What�really�is�

the�relationship�between�Dial-a-Ride�and�Taxicard�and�Capital�Call�and�community�transport�schemes?��Do�we�

clearly�understand�that?��It�is�fair�to�say�there�is�more�work�to�do�in�terms�of�getting�to�that�point.��Getting�

back�to�the�issue�about�moving�forward,�how�do�we�best�use�that�mix�to�best�meet�the�growing�expectations�

of�people�who�rely�on�door-to-door�services?��That�is�really�the�issue�that�we�need�to�try�to�address.��Different�

services�will�work�very�well�for�different�people�and�we�need�to�understand�that,�but�we�also�need�to�

understand�how�those�services�interrelate�to�each�other.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��We�are�going�to�be�coming�on�to�that�in�moment.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Faryal,�do�you�want�to�come�back�on�this?�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Yes.��I�just�want�to�say�that,�again,�we�saw�in�the�last�couple�of�

years�some�boroughs�capping�membership�of�Capital�Call.��It�does�not�feel�fair�then�to�say�that�there�has�been�

a�reduction�in�users�and�usage�when�some�boroughs�cap�membership.�

�

Page 20



 

 

Also,�yes,�absolutely,�Capital�Call�was�set�up�to�plug�the�gap�in�black�cab�provision,�but�things�evolve.��We�have�

wheelchair�spaces�now�on�buses�which�are�a�lot�of�times�used�by�parents�and�buggies,�for�example.��Things�

evolve�and�change.��In�the�mix,�yes,�we�absolutely�need�to�look�at�the�offer�in�terms�of�door-to-door�transport,�

but�we�also�need�to�look�at�public�transport.��We�still�have�only�67�stations�on�the�Tube�network�which�are�

step-free.��I�was�at�the�Royal�Courts�of�Justice�yesterday�with�some�of�our�members�and�a�bus�company�spent�

a�lot�of�money�hiring�top�barristers�to�argue�that�wheelchair�users�should�not�have�priority�on�buses.��This�is�

the�mix�in�terms�of�public�transport.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��That�is�a�really�interesting�point.�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��We�have�to�value�and�invest�in�those�door-to-door�transport�

services�that�exist�and�are�being�used�already.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Spencer,�from�a�borough�perspective,�do�you�want�to�comment�on�Capital�Call�and�

particularly�the�issue�of�capping?�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):��We�accept�that�some�members�

value�the�Capital�Call�service.��However,�this�is�something�that�was�discussed�by�our�relevant�committee�and�

our�view�after�consulting�with�boroughs�is�that�we�can�see�the�sense�now.��The�world�has�changed�and�a�lot�of�

the�reasons�why�the�scheme�was�introduced�in�the�first�place�are�no�longer�relevant.��What�we�suggested�is�

that�if�there�are�any�savings�if�Capital�Call�was�to�be�disbanded�for�any�reason,�perhaps�some�of�the�money�

could�be�diverted�into�Taxicard�to�improve�services�in�the�areas�that�would�be�affected�within�those�ten�

boroughs�that�you�mentioned.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��What�about�the�issue�of�the�loss�of�flexibility,�though,�if�people�were�being�told�to�

stop�using�Capital�Call�and�to�start�using�Taxicard�in�terms�of�the�number�of�journeys,�the�distances�and�so�on?��

It�seems�that�Capital�Call�gives�users�much�more�flexibility�and�much�more�freedom�than�Taxicard.�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):��Yes.��This�is�something�that�

needs�to�be�looked�at�in�detail�by�TfL�when�completing�the�review.��You�are�right.��There�is�a�different�level�of�

flexibility,�as�there�is�borough-to-borough�with�Taxicard�as�well.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Peter,�might�one�of�the�options�then�be�to�look�at�bringing�Taxicard�up�to�some�of�the�

flexibility�standards�of�Capital�Call�if�Capital�Call�were�to�disappear?�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��We�are�still�doing�that�work�and�

we�are�still�working�through�the�various�options�and�permutations�that�would�apply�to�any�changes�-�or�not�-�

that�may�come�forward�on�that.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Thank�you.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��It�would�appear�that�the�things�that�you�like�are�about�the�service.��It�is�not�who�it�is.��

It�is�the�fact�of�the�service�and�flexibility�you�provide�and�the�point�about�swiping�for�different�journeys�and�

things.��The�point�is�surely�to�understand�why�they�like�it�and�why�the�bits�they�like�could�not�be�put�into�what�

else�you�do,�if�you�see�what�I�mean.��If�I�understood�correctly,�it�was�reliability,�the�fact�that�they�will�come�and�

the�fact�that�you�can�go�for�longer�journeys.��It�is�understanding�the�customer’s�end�that�needs�to�come�into�

whatever�decisions�are�made,�rather�than,�“It�is�called�that�and�it�will�go”,�or,�“It�is�called�something�else�and�it�

will�stay”.��That�is�what�we�need�to�listen�to�this�morning.��Thank�you.�

�

Page 21



 

 

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��You�are�given�as�a�Capital�Call�user�a�£200�budget�every�

financial�year�and�you�can�use�that�however�you�want.��Six�or�seven�years�ago,�it�was�introduced�by�TfL�with�

banding�which�kind�of�mirrored�the�Taxicard�subsidy�levels.��Still,�absolutely,�I�would�agree�that�it�is�the�

freedom�to�use�that�budget�how�you�want.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��That�helps�with�the�longer�journeys.��Joan,one�of�the�frustrations�you�

mentioned�earlier�was�that�you�could�not�get�to�the�West�End�on�Dial-a-Ride�because�of�the�five-mile�limit,�

but�presumably�you�could�use�Capital�Call�because�you�have�a�budget�to�spend�as�you�want.��It�is�a�much�more�

personalised�budget.�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��Yes,�absolutely.��No�problem�whatsoever.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��It�is�that�flexibility�that�needs�to�go�into�whatever�we�take�forward.��That�is�the�point,�

isn’t�it?�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Could�we�have�a�look�at�the�various�demands�and�projections�up�to�15�years�ahead?��

We�have�had�various�studies�done,�obviously,�of�the�population�growth�and�transport�requirements�up�to�2030�

and�beyond,�but�I�particularly�wanted�to�look�at�and�analyse�some�of�the�potential�increase�in�demand�as�you�

see�it.�

�

We�are�informed�that�over-65s�will�increase�by�about�a�third,�it�is�believed,�by�2031�and�indeed�over-90s�will�

be�doubling,�apparently,�with�all�the�medical�advances�and�so�on.��How�would�you�visualise�being�able�to�cope�

with�that�kind�of�growth?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��I�do�not�know�if�that�

is�our�opportunity�to�give�you�a�progress�report�on�the�Social�Needs�Transport�Review�that�we�are�currently�

carrying�out.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��The�review�is�the�next�bit�actually�that�we�are�coming�on�to,�if�you�do�

not�mind.��We�wanted�to�really�focus�on�demand�and�efficiency�in�this�section.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��The�two�are�

interrelated�because�of�course�our�work,�which�is�designed�to�project�what�the�future�demand�is�and�how�we�

might�cope�with�that,�is�the�driving�force�behind�the�review.��It�would�be�difficult�to�disaggregate�the�two.���

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Let�us�try.���

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��The�review�that�we�

commissioned�was�for�the�very�reason�that�Richard�[Tracey]�says,�which�is�that�we�really�needed�to�get�under�

the�skin�of�what�the�demographics�were�likely�to�be�in�terms�of�the�age�of�the�population,�the�health�and�

mobility�of�the�population�and�whatever�disparities�there�might�be�both�geographically�and�culturally�across�

London�as�to�what�the�demand�for�this�sort�of�service�would�be�and,�as�Peter�[Blake]�and�others�have�already�

described,�against�the�backcloth�of�a�fully�accessible�bus�fleet�and�an�increasingly�accessible�rail�network.�

�

However,�what�was�really�driving�me�along�was�this�notion.��What�I�believe�is�that�there�are�a�very�large�number�

of�people�who�currently�do�not�use�the�accessible�door-to-door�transport�system.��Whilst�we�have�high�levels�

of�satisfaction�of�those�who�do,�there�is�a�large�number�of�people�who�for�one�reason�or�another�-�we�do�not�

yet�know�but�the�review�is�designed�to�tease�that�out�-�who�do�not�use�the�service.��The�reason�I�am�driving�

this�forward�in�the�organisation�is�that�I�truly�believe�that�there�are�some�huge�advantages�socially�for�people�

Page 22



 

 

to�be�able�to�go�about�their�business,�go�to�lunch�clubs,�go�shopping,�go�to�medical�or�go�to�friends�by�using�

whatever�service�might�be�appropriate.��It�could�be�mainstream�public�transport.��It�could�be�door-to-door.��

Therefore,�for�me,�the�unanswered�question�is�the�non-users�and�looking�forward�how�big�the�pot�of�non-users�

might�be.�

�

This�is�fiendishly�tricky�because,�as�you�might�imagine,�you�can�never�prove�the�counterfactual�and�therefore�

trying�to�do�some�work�about�finding�out�what�it�is�people�are�not�doing�because�they�do�not�do�it�is�quite�

tricky.��However,�it�is�driven�also�by�a�feeling�that�I�have�that�we�have�several�fleets�of�little�buses�running�

around�this�city�-�special�education�needs,�non-emergency�patient�transport,�the�work�done�by�the�community�

transport�sector,�the�work�done�by�Dial-a-Ride�and�so�on�-�and�it�seems�to�me�that�there�ought�to�be�some�

efficiency�driven�out�of�this.��In�effect,�across�London�we�have�fleets�of�little�buses�doing�one�job�when�in�fact,�

really,�to�get�more�efficiency�out�of�the�system�we�should�try�to�pool�that�resource.�

�

The�drawback�is�that�non-emergency�patient�transport�is�a�matter�for�health,�special�education�needs�is�a�

matter�for�education�and�Dial-a-Ride�is�a�matter�for�transport.��Therefore,�we�are�trying�to�start�from�the�

premise�that�transport�is�part�of�the�solution,�not�part�of�the�problem.��We�are�trying�to�find�a�way�of�

quantifying�the�social�benefits�that�should�accrue�to�society�by�doctors�and�nurses�not�having�to�make�house�

calls,�by�food�not�having�to�be�delivered�to�people’s�homes�and�for�other�things.��There�is�a�cost�to�society�of�

looking�after�people�who�for�one�reason�or�another�are�homebound�andif�we�can�encourage�them�to�be�more�

mobile�and�to�use�the�transport�services�that�could�be�provided�in�order�to�go�to�the�places�they�need�to�go�to,�

it�has�to�be�of�huge�benefit.�

�

There�have�been�a�couple�of�attempts�at�this.��It�is�very�tricky.��One�or�two�of�the�major�firms�have�failed�so�far�

to�come�forward�with�a�way�of�quantifying�those�benefits.��Of�course,�if�we�were�able�to�quantify�those�

benefits,�we�would�be�making�a�good�case�for�the�funding�for�transport�services�that�would�have�other�

benefits�in�society.��That�is�why�the�Social�Needs�Transport�Review�is�making�only�average�progress.��Frankly,�

the�thing�is�quite�difficult.�

�

In�respect�of�the�efficiency�of�Dial-a-Ride�going�forward,�the�position�is�that�the�cost�of�providing�a�single�

journey�on�a�Dial-a-Ride�bus�in�London�is�frighteningly�expensive�at�some�£25�a�journey.��When�as�part�of�this�

review�we�looked�outside�London�-�and�I�have�been�some�places�outside�London�to�see�this�in�action�-�the�

costs�are�much�lower�and�to�some�extent�the�numbers�of�passengers�carried�on�the�buses�are�higher.��If�the�

position�is�as�we�expect�it�to�be�and�the�demand�for�door-to-door�services�including�Dial-a-Ride�is�going�to�

grow�over�time,�as�Richard�[Tracey]�says,�with�an�aging�population�-�and�I�very�much�look�forward�to�living�to�

over�90�and�I�am�counting�on�it�-�and�if�we�are�to�assume�there�is�going�to�be�more�demand�-�and�the�review�

will�perhaps�give�us�some�more�granularity�on�that�-�then�we�need�to�gear�up.��The�way�to�gear�up�for�this�is�to�

be�more�efficient.��Being�more�efficient�is�by�carrying�more�people�on�the�services�we�provide�and�by�using�the�

right�size�transport�for�the�right�size�job.��It�is�ridiculous�to�send�a�little�bus�to�carry�one�person�in�the�same�

way�that�it�is�ridiculous�to�try�to�carry�more�than�two�or�three�people�in�a�taxi.��When�we�are�using�little�buses,�

it�is�important�-�as�they�do�outside�London�very�efficiently�-�to�carry�more�than�one�person.��That�£25�a�trip�

naturally�halves�and�halves�again�as�we�put�more�people�on.�

�

In�my�experience�outside�London,�the�passengers�who�are�travelling�in�the�company�of�other�people�like�

themselves�on�Dial-a-Ride�and�accessible�services�are�having�a�lovely�time.��They�are�having�a�longer�journey�

because�they�are�not�being�picked�up�from�home�and�taken�straight�to�their�destinations.��They�are�picking�up�

some�other�people�on�the�way.��However,�it�is�a�moving�social�club.��They�enjoy�meeting.��They�enjoy�talking�

to�each�other.��Of�course,�when�they�arrive�at�the�lunch�club�or�whatever�the�destination�is,�they�are�already�

happy�and�in�a�group�of�four�or�five.��It�has�had�a�commensurately�fabulous�improvement�in�the�cost.�

�

Page 23



 

 

We�also�believe�that�the�key�to�this�efficiency�is�the�right�blend�of�technology�and�personal�attention.��What�

we�know�is�that�if�you�phone�a�big�call�centre,�that�night�the�computer�will�throw�it�all�up�in�the�air�and�join�it�

all�together�and�there�are�some�consequences�for�that.��Outside�London,�what�works�is�that�users�call�

somebody�and�they�always�speak�to�the�same�person�because�that�person�is�lodged�locally.��They�know�the�

customers.��They�know�their�habits.��I�have�been�on�calls�when�the�local�person�says,�“Hello,�Mrs�Smith.��It�

must�be�your�time�to�go�to�the�hairdresser�again”.��She�says,�“Yes,�it�is.��I�have�an�appointment�for�2.00pm”,�

and�the�operator�says,�“I�cannot�get�you�there�for�2.00pm.��Would�you�mind�getting�there�for�1.30pm?”��The�

user�says,�“Of�course.��I�would�be�delighted”.��As�a�result�of�personal�attention�and�as�a�result�of�a�little�bit�of�

good-humoured�conversation�between�the�users�and�the�operators�who�know�each�other�personally,�it�is�loads�

better�than�-�as�Joan�has�described�-�ringing�a�call�centre�and�somehow�being�booted�out.�

�

We�do�need�the�technology�as�well�because�we�need�the�technology�in�order�to�deliver�and�monitor�the�

efficient�operation�of�the�services.��However,�without�in�any�way�pre-empting�what�our�review�might�say,�I�

would�not�be�surprised�if�more�local�booking,�a�blend�of�local�booking�with�technology�and�a�sincere�attempt�

to�carry�more�people�on�buses�would�get�us�to�a�position�where�we�get�the�costs�down.��That�will�mean�we�can�

carry�more�people�for�the�same�money.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Spencer,�can�I�ask�you�about�your�analysis�in�London�Councils?��Do�you�broadly�agree�

with�what�Leon�[Daniels]�has�been�saying?�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):��Yes,�much�of�what�Leon�has�

said�I�would�agree�with.��We�are�in�a�different�situation�because,�as�I�have�mentioned�several�times�already,�we�

are�bucking�the�trend�at�the�moment�because�the�number�of�journeys�is�reducing�rather�than�increasing�with�

the�aging�population.��I�have�already�mentioned�a�number�of�reasons�for�that.�

�

On�the�way�forward,�thinking�about�this,�it�is�all�about�the�customer.��That�is�what�we�come�down�to.��They�

want�choice,�they�want�flexibility�and�they�want�a�service�that�meets�their�needs.��Then�it�is�about�cost�as�well.��

The�key�issue�for�the�future�is�funding.��The�reason�boroughs�have�changed�their�levels�of�subsidy�is�because�

of�the�financial�pressures�they�are�facing.��All�the�time�that�Taxicard�is�a�discretionary�scheme,�the�boroughs�

will�be�looking�at�the�amount�they�spend�on�Taxicard.��Some�spend�nothing�on�Taxicard�and�rely�solely�on�the�

TfL�contribution.��Others�spend�a�great�deal.��It�is�an�area�that�is�going�to�be�looked�at�in�the�coming�years�and�

we�need�to�achieve�further�efficiencies.��In�achieving�efficiency�and�achieving�what�customers�want,�we�need�

to�listen�to�the�customers,�find�out�what�they�need�and�actually�develop�perhaps�a�more�co-ordinated,�co-

operative�service�in�the�future�which�will�(a)�address�their�needs�and�(b)�reduce�costs.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Faryal,�what�do�you�think�of�the�analysis�we�have�heard�of�the�way�it�is�going�to�go�in�

the�next�15�years?�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��I�have�quite�a�few�thoughts.��Absolutely,�if�you�say�to�anybody,�

“Would�you�rather�speak�to�a�person�or�speak�to�a�computer”,�the�person�will�say,�“I�would�rather�speak�to�a�

person�who�understands�my�trips”.��We�think�that�is�good.�

�

However,�it�almost�feels�like�we�are�going�back�to�the�future�a�little�bit.��I�remember�six�or�seven�years�ago�or�

maybe�longer�than�that�when�Dial-a-Ride�moved�from�local�depot�booking�to�the�central�Trapeze�system�that�

it�uses�currently.��There�has�been�a�lot�of�work�-�in�some�cases�quite�arduous�-�on�actually�how�you�mould�that�

call�centre�and�make�it�more�personal.��That�in�some�ways�is�the�future.��The�way�that�we�can�get�reduced�call�

waiting�times�in�peak�times�for�Dial-a-Ride�is�to�have�more�call�centre�staff�and�that�is�important.�

�

Page 24



 

 

Also,�we�need�to�have�the�technology�and�booking�systems�and�computer�systems�that�can�actually�cope�with�

a�rather�complex�system.��We�need�innovation.��We�need�to�see�what�is�happening�not�just�in�the�UK�but�

around�the�world.��How�are�door-to-door�schemes�across�the�world�operating�when�they�have�a�large�amount�

of�users�and�quite�a�complicated�booking�system?��I�would�love�to�see�that�from�TfL�in�particular.��Let�us�see�

what�is�happening�in�other�parts.�

�

Absolutely,�we�say�that�there�is�an�aging�population�and�I�will�say�it�again�because�I�have�the�opportunity:�we�

have�to�have�investment�and�political�will�as�well�and�actually�have�attention�from�TfL�and�the�Mayor�to�

actually�say,�“Yes,�door-to-door�services�are�vitally�important.��Let�us�not�have�them�on�the�outskirts�as�

Cinderella�services�toiling�away�in�the�background.��Actually,�let�us�bring�them�to�the�foreground”.��That�is�

really�crucially�important.�

�

Also,�there�is�connectivity.��We�have�Crossrail�opening�and�I�am�very�pleased�that�after�much�of�our�

campaigning�Crossrail�2�will�now�be�fully�accessible.��What�about�a�system�where�we�can�get�people�from�their�

houses�using�Dial-a-Ride�to�a�local�accessible�Crossrail�stop,�for�example,�or�a�local�Tube�stop�for�that�matter?��

It�is�joined-up�thinking�and�getting�door-to-door�services�to�merge�with�those�parts�of�the�public�transport�

network�which�are�actually�accessible.�

�

Also,�I�came�last�time�to�the�Committee�to�talk�about�taxis�and�private�hire�and�we�are�seeing�app�bookings�

and�things�like�that�opening�up�and�democratising,�for�example,�the�Taxicard�system.��Booking�by�app�now�is�

increasingly�being�used.��Something�which�we�raised�with�Dial-a-Ride’s�management�was�how�we�attract�

younger�disabled�people�to�Dial-a-Ride?��At�the�moment,�the�constituency�of�people�who�use�Dial-a-Ride�are�

older�or�elderly.��Certainly,�there�are�younger�people�as�well�who�would�like�to�use�it.��They�are�some�thoughts.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Good.��Actually,�you�have�just�talked�about�some�of�our�public�services,�Crossrail�and�

the�drive�to�make�buses�and�trains�more�accessible.��To�what�extent�do�you�think�more�accessible�public�

transport�will�reduce�the�demand�on�door-to-door�services?��Perhaps�I�could�start�with�Joan�on�that�one.��

Joan,�do�you�think�that�buses�and�trains�being�more�accessible�will�reduce�the�demand�of�door-to-door�

services?��How�will�they�mesh�together?��Do�you�think�that�is�likely?�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��From�my�experience�on�the�buses,�I�do�not�think�so.��I�have�to�

have�a�carer�to�actually�push�me.��At�my�local�stop,�the�one�that�is�closest�to�me,�for�some�reason�once�the�

ramp�comes�down,�the�doors�will�not�shut�again.��Sometimes�it�takes�about�ten�minutes�for�me�to�get�on�the�

bus�and�then�the�doors�will�not�shut.��In�the�end,�occasionally,�everybody�has�to�get�off�the�bus�and�the�bus�

goes�off�and�they�have�to�wait�for�another�one�to�come�along.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��I’ve�seen�that�happen.�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��It�seems�like�it�is�very�touch-and-go�with�these�ramps�and�

whether�they�work�efficiently�or�not.��Secondly,�of�course,�when�you�get�on�the�bus,�it�is�if�you�can�get�on�the�

bus.��If�there�are�a�couple�of�pushchairs�you�cannot�unless�the�driver�insists�that�the�pushchair�people�get�off�

and�then�allow�you�on.��Other�than�that,�you�have�to�wait�for�another�bus.��I�am�in�a�very,�very�busy�part�of�

London�and�once�you�are�on�the�bus�there�are�people�packed�all�around�you.��When�it�is�time�to�get�off,�

people�do�not�want�to�move�to�let�you�off.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��You�are�in�inner�London�in�Lambeth,�are�you?��Is�that�right?�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��I�am�in�Lambeth,�yes.�

�

Page 25



 

 

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Yes,�that�is�what�I�thought.�

�

I�will�come�back�to�you,�Faryal�[Velmi],�but�let�us�just�have�the�counter�from�Leon�and�Peter�[Blake]�at�TfL.��To�

what�extent�do�you�think�that�more�accessible�public�transport�will�reduce�the�demand?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��London�has�led�the�

country�and�the�world�in�terms�of�having�an�accessible�bus�network.��The�deadline�for�full�wheelchair�

accessibility�on�the�national�bus�fleet�is�January�2017.��In�fact,�we�completed�it�some�years�ago.��We�are�well�

ahead�of�that.��As�a�result�-�no�surprise�at�all�-�the�use�of�buses�by�people�in�wheelchairs�has�grown�

extraordinarily.��That�is�why,�of�course,�as�is�ever�the�case�with�popularity,�once�there�is�a�wheelchair�on�the�

bus,�there�is�not�always�room�for�a�second�wheelchair�user�on�the�bus.��The�point�Joan�[Hunt]�makes�

demonstrates�just�how�popular�it�has�been.�

�

There�is�a�question�about�the�ramps.��I�think,�Joan,�you�can�have�much�more�confidence�in�the�ramps�because,�

whilst�there�were�some�teething�troubles�when�the�technology�was�new,�every�ramp�on�every�bus�is�tested�

every�morning�when�the�bus�goes�out�into�service.��There�is�a�very,�very�high�level�of�reliability�with�those�

ramps.��They�fail�only�occasionally�in�service�and�we�have�to�take�the�bus�out�of�service�when�they�do�that.�

�

As�a�result�of�that,�people�who�can,�if�they�are�able�to�use�mainstream�public�transport,�have�and�with�our�

encouragement�moved�on�to�it.��If�you�can�travel�with�the�rest�of�the�people�travelling�on�the�bus,�it�is�a�nice�

thing�to�be�able�to�do.��For�a�number�of�people,�being�able�to�travel�with�other�people�on�the�regular�bus�

service�in�order�to�go�to�the�shops�with�other�people�and�so�on�is�part�of�the�triumph�of�keeping�their�respect�

and�keeping�their�mobility.��It�is�great.�

�

I�simply�believe�that�it�will�not�reduce�the�demand�for�accessible�services,�as�I�said�in�my�previous�short�

response.��It�unlocks�capacity�for�more�people�who�are�currently�housebound�and�who�are�currently�unable�to�

venture�out�and�who�perhaps�do�not�understand�what�might�be�available�to�them.��It�is�part�of�our�job�to�

encourage�them�to�come�out.��I�do�not�think�it�will�suppress�demand.��It�will�help�generate�capacity�for�new�

users.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Faryal,�what�were�you�going�to�say?�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��It�is�a�good�question.��There�will�always�be�a�need�for�door-to-

door�services�to�plug�the�gap�in�terms�of�accessibility�issues.��We�are�in�a�situation�where,�whilst�progress�is�

being�made�in�terms�of�access,�it�is�very�slow.��We�have�only�67�stations�out�of�270�which�have�some�level�of�

step-free�access.��When�you�look�at�the�map�closely,�actually�only�half�of�those�have�full�access�from�the�street�

right�into�the�train.��Yes,�absolutely,�accessible�buses�have�been�a�revelation�in�London.��They�have�opened�up�

the�city�for�many�people.��The�mobility�card�which�scooter�users�use�to�enable�them�to�access�buses�has�also�

been�fantastic.�

�

However,�the�issue�is�that,�yes,�the�ramps�have�improved�but�the�problem�now�is�the�space.��As�I�said,�

yesterday�we�spent�a�very�interesting�day�debating�in�the�Royal�Courts�of�Justice�around�the�contest�of�who�

actually�has�priority�over�that�space.��That�court�case�will�be�quite�seminal.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��It�did�receive�a�lot�of�publicity�on�television�and�in�the�newspapers.�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Yes,�it�did,�absolutely.��That�is�an�issue�and�that�is�why�door-

to-door�transport�complements.�

�

Page 26



 

 

I�will�say�one�thing�which�is�important�about�door-to-door�transport.��We�really�passionately�believe�it�should�

be�not�just�for�people�who�cannot�use�public�transport�but�for�people�who�have�good�and�bad�days�as�well.��A�

lot�of�older�people,�for�example,�on�a�perfectly�sunny�summer’s�day�would�be�happy�to�get�on�their�local�bus�

network�if�they�can,�but�on�a�cold�winter’s�day�when�it�is�icy�outside�would�more�or�less�housebound.��On�

those�occasions,�door-to-door�transport�services�absolutely�-�and�we�have�heard�it�said�-�are�a�lifeline.��That�

flexibility�is�really�important�and�we�would�like�that�to�continue,�too.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��OK.��The�other�point�that�we�want�to�ask�you�about�is�the�fact�that�the�London�

Ambulance�Service�has�said�that�it�will�not�pick�up�some�999�calls�if�they�are�deemed�to�be�non-emergencies.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��They�are�overstretched.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��What�is�the�feeling�about�that?���

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):��If�they�are�a�non-emergency,�

then�they�should�not�be�carried�by�the�ambulance�service�and�of�course�should�be�carried�by�one�of�the�

services�we�provide,�perhaps,�or�the�hospital’s�own�non-emergency�transport�service.�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��You�have�given�me�the�opportunity�to�plug�a�report�we�did,�

which�we�did�send�to�a�number�of�Assembly�Members,�called�Sick�of�Waiting.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��We�are�going�to�come�on�to�patient�transport�in�detail�at�the�end.���

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Brilliant.��Yes,�please.���

�

Ewan	Jones	(Deputy	Chief	Executive,	Community	Transport	Association):��In�terms�of�the�relationship�

between�transport�and�health�-�and�in�my�case�particularly�community�transport�-�one�of�the�key�aspects�that�

came�through�in�the�research�we�will�be�publishing�later�in�the�month�was�not�so�much�the�emergency�services�

but�non-emergency�patient�transport.��We�are�constantly�being�told�the�criteria�for�who�can�travel�and�who�

cannot�travel�have�not�changed,�but�what�we�are�seeing�at�the�coalface�is�that�the�interpretation�of�those�

criteria�is�being�tightened.��We�are�finding�that�a�lot�of�people�are�reporting�that�community�transport�is�being�

relied�on�to�provide�more�non-emergency�health�transport.��It�is�the�‘silo�funding’�mentality.�

�

I�am�not�sure�if�you�are�experiencing�that�here�as�well,�but�coming�back�to�one�or�two�of�the�points�that�Leon�

[Daniels]�was�making�earlier�on,�you�have�ambulances,�non-emergency�ambulances,�community�transport,�

taxis,�private�hire�vehicles�(PHVs),�the�whole�lot.��Half�the�time�you�can�go�in�that�one�but�you�cannot�go�in�

that�one�or�they�will�both�go�the�same�way�but,�“No,�we�will�not�share�the�transport”.��We�need�much�more�

integrated�thinking�to�get�that�better�efficiency.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��We�had�a�question�about�the�extent�of�unmet�demand�for�door-to-door�services�in�

London.��Any�comments�on�that?���

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��I�will�say�something.��It�was�a�really�interesting�point�that�Leon�

[Daniels]�made�about�how�we�actually�get�those�people�that�are�currently�now�housebound�out�and�about.��

This�is�always�an�issue�for�us.��I�am�sure�there�are�lots�of�people�who�would�have�loved�to�have�come�today�but�

are�unable�to�do�so.��That�is�something�that�Transport�for�All�would�like�to�focus�on�in�the�next�year�as�well:�

housebound�Londoners�and�how�transport�services�can�meet�their�needs.��Unfortunately,�even�in�2014,�there�

are�people�who�are�trapped�indoors�and�so�it�is�a�really�important�point.��

�

Page 27



 

 

Richard	Tracey	AM:��On�the�point�of�efficiency,�can�you�suggest�areas�where�there�could�be�greater�

efficiency�by�greater�integration�of�the�services�that�are�available?��Ewan,�you�study�this�across�the�country.��

Do�you�have�any�ideas�on�that?�

�

Ewan	Jones	(Deputy	Chief	Executive,	Community	Transport	Association):��Yes.��In�particular,�we�are�

finding�that�when�it�comes�to�public�sector�bodies�that�are�either�commissioning�or�funding�services,�there�is�

an�increasing�expectation�that�the�voluntary�sector�can�pick�things�up.��We�are�certainly�seeing�that�we�are�

different�to�London�in�that�there�have�been�a�lot�more�cuts�in�public�bus�services�and�there�is�much�more�strain�

on�a�lot�of�other�services.��There�is�an�expectation�that�the�voluntary�sector�can�do�things�cheaper�and�that�is�

not�necessarily�the�case.��Certainly�it�is�more�appropriate�at�times�but,�again,�it�is�shifting�this,�“If�we�can�make�

savings�in�our�budget,�we�are�being�more�efficient”.��That�does�not�mean�that�the�wider�transport�sector�as�a�

whole�is�being�more�efficient.�

�

There�are�some�good�examples.��There�is�some�good�joint�working�going�on�in�terms�of�the�community�and�the�

health�sectors�talking�to�each�other�in�places�like�Glasgow�and�others.��At�the�end�of�the�day,�it�is�about�

focusing�on�the�outcomes�rather�than�counting�the�inputs�we�find,�because�the�inputs�tend�to�be�counted�at�a�

certain�level�whereas�the�wider�benefit�is�not�necessarily�being�considered.���

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��On�costs,�you�brought�up�Manchester�earlier�on�and�that�is�one�graphic�example�that�

we�have�been�given�with�the�contrast�of�£25�in�London�against�just�over�£7�in�Manchester.��What�is�the�

explanation�for�that?��Obviously�London�has�a�lot�more�congestion�and�is�a�very�large�place�and�so�on,�but�it�

does�seem�an�extraordinary�difference�between�those�two�figures.�

�

Ewan	Jones	(Deputy	Chief	Executive,	Community	Transport	Association):��I�am�not�familiar�with�how�

the�individual�agencies�calculate�their�costs�per�head.��Manchester�is�run�by�Greater�Manchester�Accessible�

Transport�Ltd,�but�they�do�use�a�mix�of�different�services.��They�bring�the�Local�Link�in.��I�do�not�know�if�Local�

Link�is�included�in�that�calculation,�but�some�of�these�services�are�multi-occupancy�and�rather�than�doing�one�

person�door-to-door�and�then�going�to�get�someone�else,�Local�Link�will�pick�up�a�range�of�people.���

�

The�other�thing�we�have�seen�since�the�Local�Transport�Act�changed�regulation�around�section�22�community�

buses�in�2008�is�that�from�a�very,�very�low�base�of�about�20�or�30�operators�using�these�services�around�the�

country,�at�the�last�point�when�I�checked�with�the�Vehicle�and�Operator�Services�Agency�(VOSA)�there�were�in�

excess�of�500�services�being�run�under�community�bus�permits.��This�means�that�local�community�transport�

(CT)�operators�are�running�sometimes�fixed�but�frequently�flexible�routes.��The�general�public�can�travel�on�

them.��They�are�generally�accessible�but�they�can�be�booked�as�well.��The�route�can�vary�to�pick�people�up.��

We�are�still�seeing�quite�a�rapid�increase�in�that�kind�of�service,�bringing�that�degree�of�flexibility.��Sometimes�

relatively�minor�changes�in�the�legislative�regime�can�unlock�more�flexibility.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��TfL,�I�was�going�to�ask�what�your�view�is�on�the�disparity�of�costs.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��If�we�accept�that�the�

difference�is�about�£18,�about�£12�of�that�£18�is�the�different�paying�conditions�including�pensions�for�the�

staff�and�traffic�congestion,�low�traffic�speeds�and�so�on�in�London,�which�reduces�efficiency�because�we�are�

able�to�do�fewer�miles�and�therefore�fewer�journeys.��The�balance�is�caused�by�a�lower�than�optimum�number�

of�passengers�on�the�bus�for�the�journeys.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��With�some�of�what�Leon�was�saying�earlier,�I�thought�he�had�been�

reading�Val’s�mind�or�hearing�our�conversation�before�this�meeting.�

�

Page 28



 

 

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��It�is�the�reason�I�was�

appointed:�my�ability�to�read�Val’s�mind.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��Just�on�something�Mr�Daniels�was�saying,�it�sounded�to�me�like�you�were�saying�that�your�

customers�should�change�their�expectations�to�suit�the�needs�of�the�service.��You�were�talking�about�collecting�

more�than�one�person�and�how�they�would�have�to�tolerate�longer�journeys.��This�was�in�the�name�of�

efficiency.��Tell�me�I�am�wrong�in�that.��What�were�you�saying?��It�certainly�sounded�like�that.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��Let�me�try�to�tell�the�

story�another�way,�which�is�that�the�service�is�free�at�the�point�of�use.��As�evidenced,�it�is�costly�to�do�and�it�is�

paid�for�by�taxpayers’�money.��The�right�thing�to�do�therefore�is�to�use�-�and�I�hope�I�said�this�-�the�right�size�

vehicle�for�the�right�size�job�and�it�is�not�cost-effective�to�use�a�whole�little�bus�to�carry�one�person.��

Therefore,�the�best�way�of�getting�some�more�efficiency�is�to�carry�several�people�on�that�little�bus�because�it�

makes�the�cost�per�person�much�better.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��See,�I�must�admit�--�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��If�I�may�just�finish,�in�

my�experience�outside�London,�wherever�I�have�gone�to�see�this�-�and�you�used�the�word�‘tolerate’�-�the�

passengers�were�not�tolerating�longer�journeys.��The�passengers�were�enjoying�the�spirit�of�travelling�with�

friends�and�neighbours�and�others.��Instead�of�them�simply�going�-�if�I�might�say�so�to�take�an�example�-�to�a�

lunch�club�for�a�couple�of�hours�with�their�friends,�the�fact�that�they�spent�20�or�30�minutes�on�the�bus�going�

to�and�from�it�meant�that�they�spent�three�hours�with�their�friends.���

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��They�all�know�each�other,�do�they?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��Indeed.��They�all�

know�each�other.��They�are�all�friends�together.��You�said�they�were�‘tolerating�longer�journeys’.��They�were�

enjoying�longer�journeys�and�it�was�part�of�the�fun�of�going�out�on�that�expedition.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��What�you�are�saying�is�under�this�system�somebody�will�call�up�to�go�on�a�bus,�one�of�the�

small�mini�buses�or�whatever�it�is�and�will�go�with�somebody�they�know�on�a�longer�journey.��I�do�not�

understand.��I�do�not�understand�how�they�all�know�each�other.��What�a�fantastic�community.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��This�is�London,�though.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��This�is�us�being�Londoners.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��When�I�go�on�a�bus,�I�know�virtually�nobody.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��They�may�not�know�

each�other�at�the�start,�but�they�certainly�will�at�the�end.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:		Andrew,�in�the�north,�people�talk�to�each�other�on�public�transport.��I�am�speaking�as�a�

northerner.��It�is�a�very,�very�big�cultural�divide.�

�

Tom	Copley	AM:		They�thank�the�driver�as�well�when�they�get�off�the�bus.�

�

Page 29



 

 

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��I�was�just�going�to�say�

that�they�may�not�know�each�other�at�the�start�but�they�certainly�will�at�the�end.�

�

What�I�am�saying�for�the�record�is�that�the�experience�outside�London�was�that�getting�more�efficiency�by�

carrying�more�people�on�one�of�these�buses�was�not�seen�by�the�users�as�a�disadvantage.��It�was�seen�by�the�

users�as�a�positive�thing.��They�enjoyed�the�friendship�and�the�companionship�of�the�journey.��That�was�a�

positive�experience�for�them.��It�helps�to�contribute�to�why�the�cost�in�other�parts�of�the�country�is�much�lower�

than�it�is�in�London,�where�it�is�not�actually�cost-effective�to�spend�£25�per�journey�by�sending�a�driver�and�a�

bus.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��I�have�always�had�a�rather�poor�view�of�efficiency.��It�is�much�more�efficient�for�everyone�

to�stay�home.��I�was�wondering�whether�or�not�we�should�be�talking�about�effectiveness.��Only�if�we�talk�about�

the�effectiveness�of�the�service�might�we�concentrate�on�the�booking�system�and�the�criticisms�that�we�have�

actually�heard�of�the�system�rather�than�trying�to�get�the�customers�to�change�their�view�of�the�service�or�to�

offer�them�a�different�service�to�the�one�that�they�actually�want,�which�is�transport�from�home�to�where�they�

want�to�be�and�back�again.��I�was�just�a�little�concerned�with�how�we�are�shifting�the�expectations�of�the�

customers.��That�was�my�worry.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��I�would�simply�say�we�

are�enhancing�their�experience�thanks�to�the�warm�community�spirit�that�exists.�

	

Andrew	Boff	AM:��If�I�ordered�a�cab�and�I�was�told,�“Yes,�you�can�have�a�cab�but�you�have�to�share�it�with�

three�other�people”,�whom�I�have�never�met�before�in�my�life,�I�would�not�call�that�an�enhancement.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Nor�would�they,�probably.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��Nor�would�they.��It�would�be�all�right�for�me.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��What�is�the�difference�between�a�bus�and�a�cab?�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Hold�on.��Let�us�let�Leon�respond�to�that�and�Ewan�[Jones]�wants�to�

come�in�on�this.�

	

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��I�can�only�respond�by�

saying�that�ride-sharing�in�taxis�and�private�hire�vehicles�is�the�next�big�step�that�is�likely�to�take�place�in�this�

city.��There�are�people�coming�to�the�market�now�-�generally�people,�Andrew,�like�yourself�-�who�wish�to�split�

the�cost�of�their�journey�by�sharing�it�in�a�taxi�with�somebody�else.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��It�is�why�I�am�committed�to�cycling.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:		It�happened�to�me�in�Epping�last�week.��It�was�good�fun�and�a�lot�cheaper.���

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��We�are�side-tracking.��Ewan�[Jones]�wanted�to�come�in�on�your�

question,�Andrew.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��Yes,�I�was�pleased�about�that.�

�

Ewan	Jones	(Deputy	Chief	Executive,	Community	Transport	Association):��Just�to�back�up�some�of�

what�Leon�[Daniels]�has�been�saying,�again,�going�back�10�or�15�years�I�have�been�involved�in�doing�research�

Page 30



 

 

and�producing�videos�about�community�transport.��One�of�the�key�aspects�that�comes�through�frequently�and�

is�quite�specifically�put�forward�is�the�social�aspect�of�the�travel.��That�is�one�of�the�big�things�on�community�

transport.��It�actually�goes�further�in�some�cases:�the�journey�was�almost�the�most�important�element.��It�did�

not�really�matter�where�you�were�going.��Sometimes�that�was�on�group�services�where�people�were�coming�

together�as�a�group�and�all�going.��Other�times�it�was�flexible�bus�services�where�different�people�were�picked�

up�in�different�places.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��Let�us�ask�Ms�Hunt.��Would�you�prefer�a�party�on�the�bus�or�do�you�just�want�to�go�where�

you�want�to�be?��What�is�your�expectation?�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��I�prefer�to�go�where�I�want�to�go.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��I�thought�so.��Thank�you�very�much.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Very�good,�thank�you.���

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��I�just�want�to�pick�up�this�point.��I�know�we�are�going�to�come�to�patient�travel�later�

on.��It�is�this�point�that�the�purpose�of�the�journey�is�very�important.��If�they�are�going�for�a�social�event,�I�can�

understand�that.��If�people�are�going�for�a�hospital�appointment,�they�do�not�want�to�have�a�guided�tour�of�

the�city�in�reaching�there.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��Of�course,�as�you�

know,�Dial-a-Ride�is�not�able�to�take�people�to�hospital�and�I�am�afraid�urgent�medical�appointments�are�

not�--�

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��Not�urgent;�even�routine.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��Even�routine�

appointments�at�hospital�are�not�part�of�the�Dial-a-Ride�service.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��They�do.��They�drop�them�at�the�café�nearby�and�things�like�that.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��Although�we�have�

highlighted�this�moving�social�club,�what�I�said�at�the�outset�before�I�used�that�as�an�example�was�that�it�was�

about�using�the�right�size�vehicle�and�the�right�sort�of�service�for�the�right�job.��By�way�of�example,�I�pointed�

out�that�there�are�those�cases�where�having�slightly�longer�journey�times�for�several�passengers�together�is�the�

right�thing�to�do.��It�is�also�equally�the�case�that�a�smaller�vehicle,�a�taxi�or�a�private�hire�vehicle�taking�you�

directly�from�outside�your�house�to�the�café�next�to�the�hospital�where�you�want�to�go�might�also�be�the�right�

thing.��I�was�simply�explaining�that�it�is�one�of�a�range�of�things�by�example.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��That�leads�us�on.��We�have�already�been�talking�about�the�real�

understanding�of�the�review�of�door-to-door�and�where�these�services�need�to�go�in�the�future.���

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��We�need�to�try�to�bring�some�of�this�together�now.��We�all�

express�our�appreciation�for�what�Dial-a-Ride�and�Taxicard�does�for�the�community.��They�are�much�valued.��

Clearly,�there�are�problems�and�frustrations�about�bureaucracy�and�reliability.��Clearly,�there�is�some�

incoherence�between�the�different�offers�of�the�different�services.�

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��Yes,�you�cannot�get�them�all�the�time.�

Page 31



 

 

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��It�is�not�a�seamless�service�from�the�customer’s�point�of�view.��

There�are�these�organisational�silos�and�they�all�have�their�internal�rationales�and�problems.��We�do�appreciate�

the�fact�that�these�services�are�provided.��Equally,�we�are�very,�very�aware�of�the�frustrations�that�users�

experience�on�all�of�these�services.���

�

From�a�Committee�point�of�view,�we�have�an�additional�frustration�which�is�that�we�have�been�talking�about�

reviews�for�well�over�six�years�now,�I�think,�when�we�first�came�into�this.��This�is�our�third�look�at�this�issue.��

There�was�talk�about�cross-service�reviews�so�that�issues�of�management�efficiency�from�having�organisations�

working�together�and�perhaps�some�shared�budget�management�and�shared�commissioning�and�those�things�

were�on�the�agenda.��Actually,�we�have�seen�none�of�that�progress.��I�am�very�distressed�to�hear�today�from�

Taxicard�that�there�is�an�absence�of�consumer�study�and�there�is�an�absence�of�awareness�of�the�detail�of�

people’s�experience�and�expectations�of�Taxicard.���

�

Let�us�just�go�back�to�the�big�picture.��You�have�talked�about�the�demographics�and�future�demand�and�unmet�

demand.��How�does�what�is�going�on�at�the�moment�in�your�review�relate�principally�to�the�needs�and�the�

experiences�of�the�customer?��What�is�being�done�to�make�sure�that�customers,�stakeholders�and�passengers�

are�involved�in�your�review,�TfL,�and�in�any�work�that�Taxicard�is�doing?�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��We�have�not�got�there�yet.��That�

is�the�honest�answer.��We�are�conscious�of�the�previous�work�that�has�gone�on.��I�am�still�relatively�new�to�TfL.��

I�have�gone�through�both�the�previous�reports�that�London�Councils�have�done�and�the�reports�that�you�have�

had�here.��It�seems�to�me�that�there�were�a�lot�of�good�ideas�there�but�what�we�need�is�a�series�of�incremental�

steps�to�get�there.��That�needs�to�be�tested�with�users�in�terms�of�what�an�idea�might�be�and�users�need�to�

inform�the�way�forward.�

�

What�we�have�is�a�start�on�a�bit�of�empirical�work�that�builds�on�some�of�the�work�you�have�pulled�together�

previously�and�we�are�simply�not�at�the�point�yet�where�we�can�say�how�we�stitch�this�fog�together�to�get�a�

coherent�offer�with�the�various�services�that�are�out�there.��What�steps�do�we�need�to�make�in�policy�terms?��

That�might�be�quite�difficult�for�some�of�the�individual�agencies,�but�nevertheless�we�should�get�out�there.��

What�are�the�probably�far�quicker�operational�changes�that�we�can�make�that�will�have�an�impact?��Then�

making�sure�we�feed�the�customers�into�that�conversation�at�an�appropriate�point.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Is�there�a�plan�to�have�stakeholder�customer�consultation�as�

part�of�your�review?�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��When�we�take�this�forward,�we�will�

need�to�have�customer�considerations�as�part�of�that�because�that�is�the�only�way�we�are�going�to�be�--�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��I�think�you�are�misunderstanding�me,�Peter.�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��Sorry.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��The�point�I�was�making�was�whether�what�the�customers�need�

and�expect�should�be�right�at�the�beginning�of�the�review�process.��Are�you�not�starting�off�by�looking�at�the�

service�and�having�a�piece�of�research�done�asking�the�stakeholders,�the�customers�and�the�users,�“What�is�

right,�what�is�wrong�and�what�do�you�need”?�

�

Page 32



 

 

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��Sorry,�I�might�not�have�explained.��

We�are�not�starting�from�a�blank�canvas�here.��You�have�articulated�yourself�that�there�is�an�awful�lot�of�work�

already�gone�on�with�this,�but�it�is�just�that�progress�has�not�come�forward�in�delivery,�frankly.��We�are�not�

starting�from�that�point.��We�are�picking�up�a�baton�to�say,�“How�do�we�move�this�forward?”��That�is�the�point�

we�are�at�in�terms�of�taking�it�forward.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��We�have�talked�a�lot�about�the�call�centre.��That�is�one�of�the�

big�changes�we�have�seen,�the�move�from�a�local�to�a�larger�area�call�centre�and�vast�investment�in�new�

technology.��You�are�not�starting�from�a�point�of�view�of�actually�checking�how�well�that�works�with�the�

customers?�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��Transport�for�London�checks�that�

periodically.��That�is�part�of�our�customer�assessment�criteria�in�terms�of�dealing�that.��We�do�know�and�we�

made�the�point�--�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Have�you�done�a�stakeholder�engagement�programme�about�

that?�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��We�do�that�on�a�periodic�basis�

anyway�to�assess�the�customer�view�of�the�service.��Therefore,�we�know�and�we�articulated�earlier�on�that�

actually�the�booking�point�is�the�point�that�some�of�the�customers�feel�pain�in�terms�of�accessing�the�services.��

We�understand�that.��What�we�need�to�do�is�to�come�forward�with�a�mechanism�that�can�try�to�do�that.���

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��You�feel�you�have�started�the�review�with�a�really�

comprehensive,�up-to-date�view�of�what�the�customers’�views�and�experiences�are�and�what�the�stakeholders’�

views�and�experiences�are�of�the�service�as�currently�provided?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��I�would�say�we�have�a�

very�good�understanding�of�what�people�think�of�the�service.��I�would�not�expect�any�specific�questioning�to�

produce�anything�different�to�what�we�currently�know.��As�I�said�previously,�part�of�my�focus�is�also�about�the�

non-users.��It�is�about�who�does�not�use�the�service�and�why�they�do�not�use�it.��To�reiterate,�we�understand�

and�we�have�continuous�evidence�about�how�users�and�stakeholders�feel�about�the�service.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Have�you�done�some�work,�then,�with�the�potential�market�of�

non-users,�Leon?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��No,�part�of�the�tricky�

bit,�as�I�said�earlier,�is�about�identifying�who�they�might�be�and�why�they�do�not�use,�but�it�is�planned.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��All�right.��Peter,�you�said�therefore�that�you�are�building�on�

the�historic�work�that�has�gone�on�in�the�past.��How�does�this�review�relate�to,�say,�the�London�Councils�review�

that�was�done�in�2008�-�2010?�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��In�terms�of�some�of�the�suggested�

outcomes�and�recommendations,�in�broad�terms�they�are�saying�there�may�well�be�some�latent�demand�we�are�

not�dealing�with�and�we�recognise�there�is�more�work�to�do.��Coordination�per�se�will�take�us�forward,�certainly�

in�terms�of�enhancing�efficiencies.��There�is�probably�a�question�mark�on�what�that�co-ordination�looks�like,�

not�least�because�water�has�gone�under�the�bridge,�certainly�since�2008,�around�public�spending�levels�and�the�

like.��That�needs�to�be�refreshed�in�terms�of�what�co-ordination�is.���

Page 33



 

 

�

Our�conversation�this�morning�has�said�that�we�operate�a�Dial-a-Ride�system�that�is�quite�different�to�a�

Taxicard�system�and�they�do�not�necessarily�relate.��Community�transport�then�is�one�step�further�down�the�

line,�let�alone�getting�to�special�needs�daycentre�transport�or�whatever�else.��That�mix�exists.��What�the�

previous�work�clearly�identified�was�that�it�does�not�hang�together�terribly�well,�certainly�from�a�customer�

perspective,�and�progress�on�that�would�be�beneficial.��What�that�progress�is,�in�a�2014�context,�we�need�to�

continue�to�do�more�work�with.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Does�everyone�around�the�table�agree�that�greater�integration�

of�these�services,�possibly�even�to�the�point�of�joint�commissioning,�would�be�a�desirable�objective?��Spencer?�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):	�To�a�certain�extent,�yes.��I�am�

sure�there�would�be�some�areas�where�joint�work�and�joint�commissioning�will�work.��In�fact,�the�way�we�

operate�the�Taxicard�scheme�is�perhaps�a�good�example�of�where�we�operate�a�scheme�on�behalf�of�33�

different�local�authorities,�particularly�now�with�the�private�hire�vehicles�being�introduced�as�well.��That�is�via�a�

number�of�local�subcontractors.��We�operate�as�one�scheme.��We�have�a�single�call�centre�for�call�bookings.��A�

large�part�of�that�call�centre�is�not�based�within�London,�yet�we�provide�a�local�service�because�we�have�now�a�

good�computer�system�that�provides�that�journey�history.��Even�if�they�are�not�known�to�the�people�who�are�

calling,�they�can�see�where�they�make�their�most�common�journeys.��They�can�say,�for�example,�“Are�you�going�

to�the�hairdressers�again�today”,�because�that�is�their�regular�trip.��Therefore,�you�can�provide�that�personal�

level�of�service�on�a�more�efficient�scale�by�bringing�services�together.�

�

I�would�also�like�to�address�the�critical�comment�you�made�of�Taxicard�earlier.��Just�to�clarify,�what�I�said�is�we�

have�not�researched�in�detail�the�reasons�behind�the�recent�decline�in�the�Taxicard�service.��We�are�aware�of�

some�of�the�likely�causes,�but�I�have�admitted�we�have�not�researched�that�at�all.��I�am�not�saying�we�will�not.��

It�is�something�I�would�be�very�keen�to�look�into�in�more�detail.���

�

You�were�saying�that�there�is�an�absence�of�consumer�view�and�expectations.��That�is�not�true.��We�meet�

regularly�with�Transport�for�All,�for�example,�and�other�groups.��We�have�that�constant�contact�and�feedback�

from�our�customers�through�our�call�centres�and�through�correspondence�and�from�working�closely�with�

boroughs�and�TfL�as�well.��We�do�have�that�regular�contact�with�our�customers.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��You�are�talking�to�the�people�who�are�still�using�the�service.��

You�are�not�talking,�presumably,�to�the�people�who�have�dropped�out�from�the�service.��There�is�quite�a�large�

cadre�of�people�who�are�ceasing�to�use�the�service,�which�is�what�we�were�picking�up�from�the�data.�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):	�Yes.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��What�you�are�saying�is�you�have�not�spoken�to�them.��By�

definition,�you�are�dealing�with�people�who�are�still�managing�to�get�a�benefit�--�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):	�We�have�some�anecdotal�

feedback,�but�I�accept�we�can�do�further�work�into�finding�out�why�people�are�transferring�to�other�services,�

perhaps.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Do�you�think�the�concept�of�greater�integration�would�bring�

some�benefit�financially�as�well�as�in�terms�of�customer�service?�

�

Page 34



 

 

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):	�I�believe�there�is�scope�for�

benefits�in�terms�of�improved�service�and,�yes,�cost�efficiencies�also.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��What�about�you,�Ewan?�

�

Ewan	Jones	(Deputy	Chief	Executive,	Community	Transport	Association):��The�community�transport�

sector�in�a�number�of�areas,�but�in�London�in�particular,�feels�that�it�has�quite�a�lot�to�offer�in�terms�of�

delivering�some�of�the�other�services�that�it�is�not�currently�involved�in,�particularly�services�like�door-to-door.���

�

Perhaps�it�is�not�an�issue�here,�but�a�lot�of�patients�who�are�eligible�for�concession�travel,�for�instance,�do�not�

have�access�to�services�and�end�up�paying�to�go�on�community�transport.��That�is�one�of�the�things�that�does�

not�exist�here,�I�suppose.���

�

Community�transport�services�generally�are�focused�on�need.��They�do�start�with�the�user.��They�look�at�what�

people�want�to�do�and�where�they�want�to�go.��A�lot�of�the�research�that�we�have�done�in�the�CT�sector�over�

the�years�does�not�start�with,�“Where�do�you�want�to�go?”��It�starts�with,�“What�do�you�want�to�do?��What�can�

you�not�do?��What�are�your�issues?��What�are�your�problems?”��Then�we�take�that�forward.��Understanding�

those�needs�is�important,�but�when�you�get�to�the�integration�point�of�view�the�fact�of�the�matter�is�that�using�

the�best�range�of�tools�in�the�toolbox,�if�you�like,�means�that�you�can�get�a�more�efficient�system.��If�it�is�more�

efficient�in�some�areas�to�use�community�transport�or�Taxicard�or�Dial-a-Ride,�then�that�is�what�should�be�

done.���

�

There�are�good�examples�of�joint�commissioning,�for�instance,�going�on�in�places�like�Norfolk�where�they�are�

looking�at�health�transport,�bus�services�and�community�transport.��Let�us�look�at�that�in�the�round.��Let�us�

look�at�where�people�want�to�go�and�when�and�let�us�see�how�we�can�deliver�the�most�transport�for�the�most�

people.��It�picks�up�Andrew’s�[Boff]�point�earlier�to�an�extent�in�that�if�the�option�is�whether�they�want�direct�

transport�from�there�to�there�when�they�want�it�or�whether�they�want�to�go�a�slightly�more�circuitous�route,�a�

lot�of�people�will�go�for�that�option.��If�it�is�whether�they�want�to�go�the�slightly�more�circuitous�route�or�to�

have�nothing,�which�is�the�issue�for�some�people,�then�they�go�for�a�different�option.�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��I�remember�that�London�Councils’�review�back�in�2008�or�

something�did�look�at�joint�commissioning.��It�was�just�such�a�massive�beast�that�it�was�very�unwieldy�and�did�

not�really�come�up�with�any�answers.��TfA�was�involved�in�that�by�EO�Consulting.��It�was�interesting�because�it�

really�did�examine�lots�of�the�different�elements�of�door-to-door�provision�but�just�could�not�sew�them�

altogether�because�they�are�just�so�different.��

�

There�absolutely�could�be�better�integration.��Actually,�just�to�go�back,�I�am�not�sure�about�joint�

commissioning�until�we�see�a�model�that�we�think�works.��Yes,�there�can�be�better�integration.��Let�us�look�at�

the�application�forms�for�Dial-a-Ride�and�Taxicard;�they�are�very�different.��Actually,�Taxicard�has�two�different�

types�of�application�forms,�which�is�also�not�so�much�an�issue�but�that�is�just�the�way�London�is�because�every�

borough�has�its�own�priorities.��Dial-a-Ride�does�say�that�if�you�are�a�member�of�Taxicard�you�can�

automatically�become�a�member�of�Dial-a-Ride,�which�is�great.��Taxicard�does�not�say�that.��They�both�have�

very�different�application�processes.��That,�for�starters,�could�be�made�more�efficient�and�streamlined�so�that�

disabled�and�older�people�do�not�have�to�fill�out�and�go�through�very�different�processes.�

�

There�was�a�scheme�that�operated�in�Newham�for�many�years,�the�Door�2�Door�scheme,�which�did�actually�

integrate�Dial-a-Ride�and�Taxicard.��We�have�many�members�in�Newham�who�really�love�that�scheme.��That�is�

coming�to�an�end.��It�was�a�very�generous�scheme�as�well.��That�is�probably�why�they�liked�it,�but�that�was�bit�

Page 35



 

 

of�an�anomaly�in�London.��Better�integration�is�important�and�needed.��Actually,�maybe�we�could�look�to�see�

how�Newham�did�it�and�how�they�managed�to�integrate�the�two�schemes�to�the�benefit�of�users.���

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):		Joan,�do�you�have�any�comments�about�whether�or�not�the�

services�ought�to�work�in�a�more�integrated�way�together?���

�

Joan	Hunt	(door-to-door	service	user):��That�is�beyond�my�comprehension,�but�I�do�think�that�if�Taxicard�

incorporated�minicabs�along�with�its�own�service,�it�would�certainly�be�a�great�help.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��More�accessibility?�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):	�That�is�exactly�what�we�are�

doing,�yes.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��What�about�the�accessibility�issues?�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��That�will�help�some.��Some�with�accessibility�issues�can�use�minicabs.���

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��In�terms�of�the�timetable,�then,�is�there�going�to�be�a�moment�

when�London�Councils�and�Transport�for�London�actually�do�have�discussions�about�greater�integration?�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��Spencer�[Palmer]�and�I�met�last�

week�just�to�start�the�ideas�rolling�on�what�that�might�look�like.��Certainly�in�terms�of�the�timescale�we�are�

working�to,�it�is�likely�to�be�the�early�part�of�the�New�Year�because�we�are�conscious�that�we�want�to�deliver�a�

series�of�incremental�steps.��Delivering�the�ultimate�end�goal�might�take�some�time,�but�we�have�to�start�on�

that�journey.��We�are�consciously�looking�at�making�a�series�of�steps�to�get�in�that�direction.��As�part�of�today,�

any�views�that�you�as�a�group�have,�we�would�very�much�welcome�feeding�into�that.��Please�be�sure�that�

Spencer�and�I�will�be�seeing�a�little�bit�more�of�each�other�in�the�coming�months�as�we�take�this�forward.�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��We�might�say�that�we�

are�conscious�of�the�fact�that�most�attempts�to�overhaul�and�review�this�sector�in�the�past,�after�some�worthy�

attempts,�have�gone�into�the�‘too�difficult’�pile.�

�

I�hope�you�can�tell�from�some�of�the�things�we�have�said�this�morning�that�we�are�passionate�about�trying�to�

do�something�about�it�and�we�are�determined�to�do�so.��This�is�our�latest�best�chance�to�really�try�to�make�a�

difference,�and�we�will.��We�will�try�to�make�this�one�stick�in�a�way�that�ones�in�the�past�have�failed.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��I�appreciate�that�none�of�you�were�around�for�the�ones�in�the�

past,�but�is�there�anything�you�have�learned�from�the�obstacles�that�got�in�the�way�of�better�joint�planning�or�

integration�last�time?�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):	�My�understanding�of�it�-�

because�I�am�relatively�new�as�well�and�I�have�been�in�the�role�just�over�a�year�-�is�that�there�was�a�lack�of�a�

clear�business�case.��In�other�words,�there�were�lots�of�nice-to-haves.��It�made�some�clear�recommendations�

that�there�would�indeed�be�benefits�to�doing�lots�of�different�things�-�integration,�joint�commissioning�and�so�

on�-�but�the�problem�was�about�being�able�to�effectively�cost�those�and�to�show�clearly�what�those�cost�

benefits�would�be�and�then�some�of�the�wider�benefits�that�Leon�[Daniels]�mentioned�earlier�about�lifestyle�

benefits,�health�benefits�and�so�on.���

�

Page 36



 

 

The�challenge�is�the�business�case�because�that�is�what�is�going�to�make�boroughs�listen.��You�are�talking�

about�33�different�London�boroughs�in�this.��If�I�can�go�to�them�and�say,�“Look,�there�is�a�clear�business�case�

for�this.��There�is�cost�saving.��There�are�wider�benefits�for�your�residents�and�your�businesses”,�that�is�what�is�

going�to�make�the�difference.��We�need�to�work�to�a�clear�business�case�for�change�and�then�we�can�make�the�

change.���

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��I�know�it�is�early�days,�but�do�you�have�any�early�thoughts�on�

what�the�new�ideal�service�might�look�like?��Will�it�be�a�new,�more�integrated�structure?��Do�you�know�where�it�

is�going?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��I�do�not�think�we�are�

in�a�position�to�say�so�today.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��How�will�you�know�if�what�you�come�up�with�is�a�success,�

then?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��We�will�offer�it�to�a�

trial�group�of�users.��

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��You�are�actually�going�to�involve�the�stakeholders�in�a�design�

and�piloting�process?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��It�will�be�widely�

consulted�upon.��It�will�be�trialled�locally�and�we�will�see�what�the�outcomes�are.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Do�you�think�you�will�be�looking�at�the�Newham�experience,�

as�Faryal�[Velmi]�suggests?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��Of�course.�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):	�Any�proposals�for�change�will�

need�to�have�clear�success�measures�that�any�pilots�or�whatever�can�be�measured�against.��That�is�something�

that�we�are�keen�to�look�at.��As�I�say,�since�I�came�into�the�role,�it�is�something�I�was�keen�to�look�at�anyway.��I�

was�looking�at�the�work�that�had�been�done�in�the�past�and�then�TfL�approached�us�and�said�they�were�

planning�their�own�review,�which�we�welcomed�and�as�Peter�[Blake]�said,�we�have�been�working�closely�with�

TfL�on�the�review�that�they’re�doing�and�continue�that�close�working�relationship.���

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Thank�you.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��We�have�not�talked�a�great�deal�about�individual�travel�budgets.��We�have�mentioned�it�a�

little�bit.��I�have�just�added�this�per�capita�support�that�disabled�people�get�for�transport�between�Dial-a-Ride�

and�Taxicard.��It�looks�to�me�like�if�you�just�gave�somebody�the�equivalent�of�an�Oyster�with�£890�loaded�on�it�

and�said,�“That�is�your�transport�budget.��Use�that�as�you�wish”,�and�if�you�put�the�decision�making�ability�in�

the�hands�of�the�customer,�then�surely�the�efficiencies�sort�themselves�out.�

�

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):	�It�is�an�option�that�does�need�

to�be�looked�at.��Personal�travel�budget�may�well�be�something�that�needs�to�be�looked�at.��The�likelihood�is,�

though,�that�it�will�suit�some�and�not�others.�

�

Page 37



 

 

Andrew	Boff	AM:��I�do�not�disagree�that�there�may�need�to�be�adjustments�and�we�would�want�to�perhaps�

put�some�people�not�on�£891�but�some�a�little�less�and�some�more.��The�requirements�will�be�different.��I�get�

that.��Actually�putting�the�power�in�the�hands�of�the�people�who�are�using�the�service�surely�is�going�to�sort�

out�those�inefficiencies.��Customer�choice�will�determine�which�service�they�most�want�to�use,�surely,�rather�

than�spending�an�awful�lot�of�time�about�systems�integration.�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��This�is�something�that�many�local�

authorities�up�and�down�the�country�are�grappling�with�from�a�social�care�perspective.��Certainly�when�they�

stray�into�the�transport�elements�of�that,�one�of�the�principal�concerns�they�have�is�the�availability�of�an�

appropriate�level�or�appropriate�type�of�service.��If�someone�can�jump�in�the�back�of�a�taxi�and�is�using�them�

on�that�basis,�you�could�see�how�this�would�work.��If�someone�is�reliant�on�a�more�specialist�type�of�provision,�

then�you�need�to�have�confidence�that�that�specialist�type�of�provision�will�continue�to�exist.��If�you�give�all�

the�money�away,�there�is�then�no�funding�to�maintain�that.�

��

Andrew	Boff	AM:��I�get�that�but�all�of�a�sudden,�if�you�gave�that�to�individuals,�there�would�be�something�in�

the�region�-�let�us�pick�Bexley�out�of�the�air,�for�example�-�of�well�over�£1.5�million�of�support�going�to�the�

residents�of�Bexley�who�want�transport�services.��I�do�not�believe�there�would�not�be�a�supplier�there�who�

wants�to�provide�the�most�appropriate�services�for�the�needs�of�those�travellers.�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��The�experience�in�social�care�

across�England�at�the�moment�is�this�is�a�very�challenging�question.��Whilst�I�accept�the�assumption�there�will�

be�a�supplier�there,�actually�the�experience�is�not�quite�telling�us�that.��What�it�is�saying�is�that�the�supplier�

may�be�there�at�a�certain�cost�and�therefore�the�availability�of�a�Dial-a-Ride�service�or�type�of�service�because�

the�money�for�that�essentially�goes�and�they�are�not�able�to�do�the�quantum�of�trips�or�the�type�of�trips�or�

anything�else.��You�are�right�to�raise�it�and�it�is�something�that�needs�to�be�considered,�but�something�like�that�

is�not�without�risk,�certainly�if�you�are�looking�at�a�pan-London�approach.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��You�said�something�needs�to�be�considered.��Will�it�be�considered?�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��That�is�something�that�we�have�

asked�our�consultants�to�look�at.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��You�are�going�to�come�back�and�give�your�opinion�of�individual�travel�budgets,�and�the�

possibility�of�this?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��We�undertake�to�do�

that.��Our�greatest�concern�would�be�that�giving�the�average-per-head�to�everybody�might�well�supress�

demand�because�there�are�some�people�who�use�the�service�only�occasionally�for�whom�the�budget�would�be�

too�great�and�there�would�be�others�who�use�the�service�extensively�for�good�reason�for�whom�it�would�be�too�

little.��The�effect�of�that�would�be�to�supress�demand�because�the�people�who�use�the�service�extensively�

would�not�be�able�to�do�so.��However,�we�will�undertake�to�come�back�on�it.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��You�will�come�back�on�it?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��Yes.�

�

Ewan	Jones	(Deputy	Chief	Executive,	Community	Transport	Association):��I�have�seen�anecdotal�

evidence�of�where�an�authority�has�been�paying�for�a�certain�service�-�it�might�be�10�or�15�people�all�travelling�

to�a�daycentre�or�something�like�that�or�to�a�different�service�-�and�that�has�been�devolved�to�the�individuals.��

Page 38



 

 

They�have�then�used�that�money�to�travel�separately,�individually,�the�way�they�want�and�have�found�that�

actually�they�get�less�for�their�money.��When�they�try�to�go�back�to�the�service�that�was�operated�previously�by�

the�community�transport�service,�because�they�have�disbursed�to�other�places,�the�original�service�has�become�

unviable.��Therefore,�actually�giving�people�more�choice�has�resulted�in�them�having�less�choice.�

�

Andrew	Boff	AM:��That�is�an�argument�I�have�heard�before:�more�choice�means�less�choice.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��That�is�interesting.��Thank�you�for�that.��I�wanted�to�pick�up�before�we�

move�on�to�patient�transport.��I�am�not�hearing�about,�as�it�were,�future-proofing�the�service�in�terms�of�user�

technology.��The�example,�Leon�[Daniels],�you�have�given�is�quite�right.��As�far�as�there�is�a�user�profile�at�the�

moment,�older�users�may�be�going�to�a�luncheon�club,�going�to�the�theatre,�whatever�it�is�and�actually�we�

want�younger�disabled�people�to�use�these�services�more.��As�people�get�older,�more�and�more�they�are�

technology-savvy.��An�elderly�lady�I�recently�visited�in�hospice�said,�“There�is�no�Wi-Fi�here”.��She�was�quite�

shocked.��“They�have�just�refurbished.��Why�is�there�no�Wi-Fi�here?��I�want�to�be�able�to�text�people�or�email�

them”,�even�though�she�was�very�ill.��We�have�to�think�that�people�will�want�to�book�things�online.��They�do�

not�want�to�be�hanging�on�the�phone�for�10�or�15�minutes.���

�

I�want�to�understand�how�you�are�looking�at�using�technology,�perhaps�app�and�web-enabled�ways�of�booking�

and�using�the�services�and�managing�the�services.��If�you�look�at�an�email�I�had�from�London�Councils�today�

talking�about�Freedom�Pass�renewals,�they�are�expecting�50%�to�be�done�online.��That�says�that�the�‘silver�

surfers’�or�whatever�you�want�to�call�the�generation,�people�are�more�and�more�able�to�use�the�internet�and�it�

is�cheaper�for�you�to�process�if�people�use�the�internet.��Is�that�going�to�be�a�key�part�of�any�service�going�

forward?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��I�hope,�Chair,�I�did�say�

earlier�that�it�would�be�a�blend�of�technology�and�personal�attention.��That,�frankly,�is�the�difference�between�

you�as�a�technically�savvy�person�pressing�this�and�you�ringing�somebody�at�a�call�centre�who�will�do�it�for�you.��

Of�course,�the�two�things�can�properly�coexist�and�we�will�be�using�technology�extensively�but�only�as�part�of�a�

blend�of�the�service�we�provide.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��I�appreciate�it�is�not�for�everyone,�but�increasingly�there�are�a�lot�of�

people�who�would�rather�do�something�online.��For�some�people,�they�may�not�even�be�able�to�speak�on�

phones�and�it�is�easier�to�be�able�to�use�that�technology.���

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��I�just�wanted�to�say�obviously�for�the�record�-�and�I�would�support�that�-�that�for�

those�with�learning�disabilities,�they�do�not�use�computers.��Although�I�absolutely�accept�that�the�next�

generation�will�probably�be�more�technically�savvy,�I�have�to�say�I�know�a�lot�of�people�who�are�totally�unable�

and�therefore�would�prefer�to�speak�and�then�have�it�spoken�back�to�them.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Yes,�there�is�a�range�of�needs.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��I�do�think�this�morning�has�been�quite�disabled-focused�as�far�as�access�is�concerned.��

We�have�to�realise�there�is�the�hidden�and�those�with�mental�health�and�other�needs,�perhaps.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Yes,�of�course.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��I�just�want�to�make�sure�everyone�knows�around�this�table,�as�I�know�we�do�but�out�

there�who�are�watching,�that�we�are�very�conscious�of�the�service�having�to�provide�for�them,�too.��I�do�

welcome�your�points,�but�not�everybody�can�use�a�computer.���

Page 39



 

 

�

Patient�transport�is�obviously�something�that�traditionally�was�seen�possibly�in�the�past�-�and�ambulances�now�

have�paramedics�on�board�and�are�looking�more�to�fulfil�it�-�as�a�role�that�was�perhaps�for�accident�and�

emergency.��I�am�sure�Dr�Sahota�will�agree�with�me�there�that�we�need�the�ambulances�even�more�now,�which�

means�obviously�they�are�no�longer�really�around�to�take�people�and�to�transport�people.��Traditionally,�if�we�

had�gone�back�ten�something�years,�we�would�have�seen�the�ambulance�as�a�patient�ferry�to�the�appointment.�

�

Would�you�like�to�give�us�bit�of�an�update�-�and�I�know�this�is�something�you�have�indicated�previously�that�

you�wanted�to�update�us�on�-�on�the�performance,�on�the�variations�around�London�and�what�we�need�to�

know�as�a�Committee,�please?�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Yes,�Transport�for�All�recently�launched�an�investigation�and�a�

report�into�patient�transport�services�in�London.��It�was�called�Sick�of�Waiting�to�mirror�the�experiences�of�a�lot�

of�patients�-�in�particular�disabled�and�older�patients�-�that�we�have�heard.��Our�findings�were�pretty�stark,�

actually.��We�surveyed�patients�across�the�city.�

�

The�first�thing�is�that�57%�of�patient�transport�users�were�never�told�that�patient�transport�exists,�which�is�just�

ridiculous.��Just�to�be�clear�as�well,�non-emergency�patient�transport�are�those�services�which�take�people�for�

out-patient�appointments.��They�play�a�vitally�important�role�in�getting�people�to�the�healthcare�that�they�

need�and�often�much�waited-for�appointments.��The�fact�that�people�are�not�being�told�that�the�service�exists�

is�a�problem.���

�

What�we�also�found�was�that�many�trusts�are�contracting�out�their�patient�transport�services�to�a�myriad�of�

different�private�companies.��Unfortunately,�what�our�results�found�was�that�patient�transport�on�the�whole�in�

London�is�actually�failing�patients.��We�had�some�statistics�that�said�37%�of�users�actually�missed�

appointments�because�of�patient�transport�not�turning�up.��We�have�a�high�percentage�of�people�who�

responded�to�our�survey�-�users�-�saying�they�have�had�to�wait�in�excess�of�two�hours�just�to�actually�get�a�trip�

home�after�a�procedure�or�an�appointment.���

�

On�the�whole,�the�picture�is�not�good.��What�we�would�like�to�see�is�that�at�Transport�for�All�we�have�produced�

a�patient�charter�which�has�some�standards�that�we�think�trusts�and�hospitals�should�be�meeting�around�

patient�transport.��We�are�very�pleased�that�we�have�seen�some�stakeholders�in�the�patient�transport�industry�

in�wider�London�signing�up�to�that.��The�London�Procurement�Partnership,�which�commissions�transport�for�up�

to�52�trusts,�has�signed�up�to�the�charter.��Guy’s�Hospital�as�well�is�considering�signing�up.��We�are�seeing�

some�nuggets�of�good�practice�that�we�would�like�emulated�right�across�the�city.��That�in�a�nutshell�is�what�we�

found�and�our�report�is�available�on�our�website.�

�

Yes,�absolutely,�Val.��It�is�shocking.��We�would�like�to�see�attention�brought�onto�this�really�important�part�of�

transport�provision�that�many�disabled�and�older�people�use.��For�some�of�the�providers�here,�there�is�a�lot�of�

meeting�--�for�example,�Dial-a-Ride,�yes,�absolutely,�does�not�take�people�to�hospital�appointments,�although�

some�people�use�it�to�visit�people.��For�Taxicard,�some�boroughs�are�quite�strong�in�saying�it�should�not�be�

used�for�patient�transport�provision,�but�because�of�the�state�of�patient�transport�people�decide�for�their�own�

comfort�and�health�actually�at�the�end�of�the�day�to�use�Taxicard.��We�think�that�is�absolutely�fair�and�should�

happen.���

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��The�point�is�that�this�is�obviously�a�National�Health�Service�(NHS)�issue.��You�are�

absolutely�right.��From�somebody�who�takes�people�in�and�out�of�hospital�quite�a�bit,�we�all�know�that�the�

poor�people�are�sitting�around�waiting�in�cold�corridors�for�someone�to�come�back.��Fortunately,�it�is�not�TfL’s�

nightmare�yet.�

Page 40



 

 

�

Are�you�suggesting�that�the�NHS�should�commission�TfL?��Let�us�be�really�honest�and�let�us�not�beat�about�

the�bush�in�this�room.��This�is�not�TfL’s�fault.��This�is�the�NHS’s�problem.��I�do�not�want�anyone�to�go�away�

after�watching�this�in�the�ether�and�think�that�this�is�a�TfL�responsibility.��It�is�currently�a�NHS�responsibility.��

You�are�absolutely�right.��Anybody�who�has�had�anything�to�do�with�patient�transport�knows�that�it�is�not�

satisfactory�either�for�getting�people�there�on�time�or�for�the�time�it�makes�people�wait�afterwards�to�get�them�

home�and�all�the�rest�of�it.��It�would�need�a�major�sea-change�of�the�NHS�to�then�think�about�how�it�was�going�

to�commission�it.��Is�that�what�you�would�propose?�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Yes,�absolutely.��It�is�not�Transport�for�London�which�runs�

patient�transport�services,�absolutely,�although�some�of�the�good�guys�providing�patient�transport�are�

community�transport�providers�and�we�support�them�because�they�know�what�they�are�doing�and�they�value�

user�experience.��What�we�are�seeing�is�a�rush�to�the�bottom�and�basically�trusts�trying�to�do�things�on�the�

cheap�and�as�a�result,�absolutely,�these�issues�of�people�waiting�ridiculously�long�times.���

�

What�is�the�solution?��The�solution�firstly�is�to�recognise�that�this�is�a�problem�and�have�a�spotlight�put�on�it.��

Getting�trusts�to�sign�up�to�the�charter�of�minimum�standards�is�really�important�and,�beyond�that,�shaking�up�

the�system�in�order�to�try�to�move�away�from�these�contracts,�some�provided�by�some�really�big�names,�

actually.��Part�of�our�report�was�to�see�which�contractors�are�actually�providing�patient�transport.��There�are�

some�big�names�in�there.���

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��It�is�rather�like�disabled�transport�for�children�going�to�and�from�school�and�also�

transport�for�getting�people�to�go�to�daycentres.��There�tends�to�be�a�market�for�that�which�is�going�on�all�the�

time�in�all�our�boroughs.��I�am�sure�others�might�speak�on�it.��Look�at�what�has�happened�with�disabled�

people’s�transport.��It�is�a�very,�very�complicated�area.��You�are�quite�right.��There�is�a�whole�range�of�things.��

Have�you�been�in�touch�with�the�NHS�to�listen�to�you?��This�is�really�important,�I�am�sure.�

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��Who�to,�Victoria?�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��Do�you�want�to�talk�to�Anne�Rainsberry�[Regional�Director,�London,�NHS�England]?�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��It�is�a�very�good�point.��Individual�trusts�commission�patient�

transport.��You�always�go�back�to�the�trusts,�particularly�trust�managers.��Every�trust�is�different�as�well.��They�

have�different�ways�of�organising.��Therefore,�it�is�a�really�complex�picture,�even�in�one�city�let�alone�the�rest�

of�the�UK.��That�is�part�of�the�problem.�

�

You�mentioned�what�in�the�future�we�would�like�to�happen.��We�would�like�to�see,�as�I�said,�trusts�sign�up�to�

the�charter�and�move�away�from�contracts�that�are�based�just�on�putting�profit�before�people�and�then�also,�

yes,�absolutely,�look�at�other�ways�that�people�can�be�brought�into�hospital,�if�that�was�to�work�closely�with�

London�Councils�and�Taxicard,�for�example.��People�are�using�Taxicard�anyway�to�get�to�hospital.��

	

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��Because�they�are�so�frustrated.��

	

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Maybe�Taxicard’s�budget�should�get�increased�and�actually�

they�should�have�some�of�that�money�because�they�are�doing�the�work.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��Spencer,�did�you�want�to�talk�about�any�of�these�things?��They�are�very�much�local�

issues�that�affect�all�councils.�

�

Page 41



 

 

Spencer	Palmer	(Director	of	Transport	and	Mobility,	London	Councils):	�Yes,�indeed.��It�is�an�area�that�

we�do�not�know�a�great�deal�about.��Even�when�the�study�was�done�before,�although�it�did�look�at�NHS�

patient�transport�as�well,�it�was�an�area�that�not�so�much�information�was�available�for.��Clearly�there�has�to�be�

scope�for�improving�the�service.��We�have�heard�at�least�anecdotally�of�the�concerns�about�usage�of�the�service�

and�we�have�all�had�some�personal�experience�of�it�with�our�family�and�friends.��Rather�than�a�race�to�the�

bottom,�really�we�should�be�looking�at�the�customer�and�looking�at�ways�that�we�can�help�and�-�perhaps�from�

the�experience�of�Taxicard�and�other�services�that�are�run�by�TfL�-�how�the�NHS�can�learn�from�our�experience�

to�improve�the�service.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��There�are�a�range�of�contractors,�obviously,�in�this�business,�as�you�say,�day-care�

centres,�education�provision�and�obviously�hospital�transport.��Therefore,�there�is�a�range�of�those�sorts�of�

vehicles�around.��They�obviously�need�to�be�better�organised.��Leon,�did�you�want�to�add�your�pennyworth�

into�this�debate?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��I�firstly�say�thank�you�

for�reminding�everybody�that�this�is�not�our�responsibility.��I�am�grateful�for�that.�

�

A�couple�of�observations,�if�I�may.��Firstly,�although�we�do�not�have�any�statutory�obligations�in�respect�of�

individual�patient�transport�services,�clearly,�people�use�our�network�in�order�to�go�to�hospitals�and�so�on.��I�

said�earlier�and�I�am�just�happy�to�reiterate�that�it�seems�to�be�completely�ridiculous�that�there�are�different�

sets�of�vehicles�and�staff�being�used�on�discrete�groups�of�transport�for�children,�for�patients�and�for�people�

who�cannot�use�mainstream�public�transport�with�some�artificial�restrictions�in�them�about�where�they�can�go�

and�what�they�can�do.��The�problem�of�course�is�that�it�is�a�cross-government�department�activity;�it�is�

transport,�health�and�education.��Therefore,�as�ever,�anything�that�crosses�the�boundaries�of�government�

departments�is�fiendishly�tricky�to�bring�together.��We�would�certainly�reinforce�the�fact�that�in�the�current�

economic�climate�we�ought�to�be�making�best�use�of�all�of�the�resources�and�getting�people�to�where�they�

want�to�go�as�opposed�to�artificial�distinctions�between�them.���

�

Just�to�say�on�an�entirely�practical�point,�patient�transport�has�a�particular�logistical�problem,�which�is�in�my�

experience�outside�London.��Of�course,�with�apologies�to�Andrew�[Boff],�it�is�possible�to�group�people�

together�efficiently�to�take�them�to�hospitals.��In�fact,�some�hospitals�are�terribly�helpful.��They�give�everybody�

the�same�time�for�their�appointment�and�they�all�get�there�at�exactly�the�same�moment�and�can�wait�in�the�

corridor�for�their�appointment.��Of�course,�everybody’s�treatment�or�appointment�takes�an�indeterminate�

period�of�time.��Whilst�people�can�be�quite�efficiently�brought�to�the�hospital�from�local�areas�for�9.00am�or�

10.00am�or�whatever,�everybody�disburses�at�quite�a�random�rate�because�sometimes�people’s�appointments�

are�only�10�minutes�or�15�minutes.��Sometimes�it�is�an�hour�or�more.��Of�course,�it�is�sending�people�home�that�

is�the�tricky�logistical�challenge�of�patient�transport.��Inevitably�it�causes�people�to�have�to�wait�an�excessive�

period�of�time,�sometimes,�in�order�to�be�able�to�get�transport�away.��That�is�one�of�the�things�where�wider�

integration�with�a�wider�pool�of�resources�might�be�able�to�help.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��The�problem�is�that�if�you�think�about�all�the�number�of�vehicles�traipsing�through�our�

streets�taking�people�to�different�things�-�the�daycentres,�the�other�provisions,�the�outings,�the�school�

transport�-�there�is�a�lot�of�it�going�on�there�but�there�is�not,�as�you�say,�at�the�moment�any�collective�looking�

at�what�each�of�those�vehicles�are�doing�throughout�the�day�and�whether�they�could�be�better�used�in�order�to�

help�this�process.��You�are�quite�right.��There�is�getting�people�there�and�then,�once�they�are�there,�they�have�

to�hang�around�all�day�until,�“You�are�finished�with,�are�you?��Fine.��Let�us�try�to�get�you�back�home�again.��

Do�you�mind�waiting�in�this�draughty�corridor�while�we�sort�that�out?”�

�

Page 42



 

 

There�are�instances�when�I�know�that�it�has�all�worked�fine�and�I�am�sure�we�will�have�people�saying�to�us,�

“Yes,�I�have�been�quite�satisfied�and�my�hospital�does�it�well”.��However,�we�are�here�to�make�sure�that�we�

pick�up�the�silent�voices�and�those�that�are�not�heard�rather�than�those�where�it�is�going�well.��Thank�you�for�

raising�this�publicly.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��What�I�am�not�clear�on�from�what�we�have�heard�is�how�TfL/London�

Councils�are�getting�NHS�trusts�and�patient�transport�providers,�many�of�which�might�be�community�transport,�

to�feed�into�the�review�you�are�doing�and�to�see�whether�there�is�a�way�you�can�share�some�of�the�money�

there�or�use�some�of�the�vehicles.��How�are�they�linked�in�or�are�they�just�not?��Is�this�perhaps�a�“too�

difficult”?�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��At�a�strategic�level,�they�are�not.��

There�are�a�series�of�very�practical�steps�in�ways�of�taking�this�forward.��Clearly�enhancing�the�links,�for�

example,�between�TfL,�Taxicard�and�community�transport�will�feed�into�the�overall�mix.��There�was�clearly�work�

done�on�the�previous�reviews�that�was�saying�this�bit�about�how�we�have�different�providers�doing�different�

things�and�whether�borough�transport�fleets�should�be�able�to�provide�Dial-a-Ride�locally.��That�is�clearly�an�

opportunity.��What�we�have�to�do�-�going�back�to�Spencer’s�[Palmer]�point�-�is�to�make�the�case�and�then�

probably�come�up�with�a�series�of�whether�it�is�pilots�or�whatever�we�call�them.��Let�us�go�out�there�and�

literally�take�this�for�a�spin�and�make�sure�we�are�getting�the�customer�feedback�on�that.��It�is�very�much�a�

series�of�incremental�steps,�short�of�going�and�knocking�on�the�door�of�Department�for�Health�and�saying,�

“Actually,�there�is�probably�a�better�way�of�doing�this”,�but�we�would�not�be�the�first�to�do�that.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��That�is�because�NHS�trusts�have�their�own�budget.�

	

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��That�is�right.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��You�are�saying�the�NHS�could�be�a�later�step?��If�you�get�something�up�

and�running�and�it�is�much�more�integrated�and�is�working,�you�could�then�talk�to�them�about�how�--�

�

Peter	Blake	(Director	of	Service	Operations,	Transport	for	London):��It�has�to�be�the�hope�and�

expectation�that�we�make�a�series�of�improvements�and�then�we�say,�“Actually,�we�would�like�to�go�further�

with�this”,�because�we�have�demonstrated�the�case�in�terms�of�whether�it�is�funding�or�customer�feedback�or�

whatever�else.��Surely�to�build�on�that�level�of�success�we�are�probably�more�likely�to�get�a�better�hearing.��

Certainly�my�experience�elsewhere�in�England�when�we�do�that�with�the�health�agencies�is�that�if�you�go�with�a�

good�news�story,�with�a�business�case�and�with�the�wherewithal�to�do�this,�frankly,�they�are�far�more�likely�to�

take�you�up�on�it�because�their�issue�is�health�and�their�issue�is�not�transport,�which�is�part�of�the�problem�

because�they�are�not�giving�transport�due�regard�in�terms�of�the�decision-making.���

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��First�of�all,�I�am�really�glad�this�has�been�brought�up�to�the�surface.��As�a�practising�

doctor�in�London�I�sympathise�and�see�this�problem�all�the�time.��Of�course,�the�issue�about�it�is�that�no�one�

knows�what�the�criteria�are.��I�see�patients�who�go�to�hospital�doctors�and�they�are�told�to�go�to�their�GP�and�

the�GP�tells�them�to�go�to�the�hospital�doctor.��We�do�not�know�who�is�meant�to�do�the�booking.��We�do�not�

know�who�is�providing�the�booking�or�who�is�providing�the�transport.��We�see�this�all�the�time.��You�have�

highlighted�a�need�for�a�strategic�look�across�London�at�this�important�sector�of�door-to-door�and�there�is�no�

one�taking�responsibility�for�it�at�the�moment.��It�is�all�very�fragmented.��

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Absolutely.��That�was�exactly�the�findings�of�our�report.��I�

remember�from�being�involved�in�London�Councils’�review,�the�last�one�in�2008�or�something,�that�one�of�the�

stumbling�blocks�was�actually�getting�the�information�from�the�then�primary�care�trusts�(PCTs)�about�patient�

Page 43



 

 

transport.��As�part�of�our�research�we�did�a�freedom-of-information�request�to�every�single�trust�in�London�to�

get�the�information�about�eligibility,�about�waiting�times,�about�who�your�contractor�is.��It�was�a�very�torturous�

process�to�extract�that�information.��It�has�been�paid�for�by�public�money�and�it�is�so�difficult�to�actually�get�

this�information�out.��I�remember�that�was�one�of�the�stumbling�blocks.���

�

Absolutely,�there�does�need�to�be�a�shake-up.��Unfortunately,�when�you�go�to�NHS�England�or�even�if�you�go�

to�the�Department�of�Health,�they�just�hold�their�hand�up�and�say,�“This�is�the�trusts”.��That�is�the�kind�of�

landscape�we�are�in�at�the�moment.��It�is�very�fragmented.�

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��This�is�the�landscape�we�see�repeatedly�here�in�the�Chamber�about�what�is�happening�

with�the�NHS.�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Yes.�

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��One�of�the�things�I�am�told�is�that�for�the�transport�provider,�if�they�deliver�patients�

late�for�appointments,�there�is�no�fining�of�them�and�there�is�no�penalty�for�it.�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��Yes,�absolutely.���

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��Why�is�that?��Why�do�you�think�that�would�be?��If�any�of�us�were�doing�it,�there�

would�be�a�penalty�for�it.�

�

Faryal	Velmi	(Director,	Transport	for	All):��That�is�a�very�good�question�and�that�is�actually�part�of�our�

charter.��We�did�come�across�through�our�research�that�there�are�many�trusts�and�when�their�contractor�is�not�

meeting�obligations�around�time�and�delivery�and�all�of�that�type�of�stuff,�there�are�no�financial�penalties�and�

they�are�just�getting�away�with�it.���

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��Maybe,�Onkar,�you�could�take�that�up�with�your�Health�Committee.��You�could�set�up�

and�you�could�ask�people�to�come�in.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��I�think�we�all�agree�there�is�a�problem�here.��I�have�had�a�

recent�experience�as�well�with�an�elderly�relative.�

�

Just�to�hark�back�to�the�earlier�work�that�this�Committee�did�on�bus�services,�Leon,�one�of�the�suggestions�

from�this�Committee�was�that�TfL�does�need�to�give�much�more�attention�to�ordinary�bus�routes�serving�

hospitals.��You�might�reduce�some�of�the�need�for�door-to-door�services�or�patient�transport�if�mainstream�bus�

services,�which�are�brilliantly�accessible,�went�much�closer�to�the�hospitals�and�had�good�interchanges,�et�

cetera.��Is�that�something�we�are�going�to�see�TfL�doing?�

�

Leon	Daniels	(Managing	Director	of	Surface	Transport,	Transport	for	London):��Following�the�

Committee’s�report,�we�have�refreshed�our�approach�with�the�hospital�trusts.��The�problem�is�that�changes�by�

the�hospital�trusts�are�often�presented�to�us�too�late.��Arrangements�are�made�for�moving�hospitals,�merging�

hospitals�and�so�on,�and�in�some�cases�the�arrangements�are�too�late�for�us�to�get�to.��We�have�several�at�the�

moment�as�a�result�of�changes�at�the�hospital.�

�

In�one�particular�case,�the�hospital�has�undertaken�a�redevelopment�and�has�effectively�shifted�the�main�

entrance�from�where�the�bus�was�to�around�the�back�to�a�place�we�cannot�get�to.��We�were�onto�this�too�late.��

We�did�not�know�about�this�until�it�was�too�late.��Now�we�have�a�situation�where�service�to�the�hospital�is�not�

as�good�as�it�should�be.��Therefore,�we�are�trying�to�engage�with�the�hospital�trusts�as�quickly�as�possible�to�

Page 44



 

 

get�as�much�information�as�we�can�early.��We�are�encouraging�them�to�talk�to�us�so�that�we�can�adjust�our�

services�as�their�situations�and�circumstances�change�and�there�is�not�a�worsening�of�the�services�at�hospitals.��

As�a�result�of�what�we�agreed�previously,�we�are�trying�as�hard�as�we�can.���

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Thank�you�very�much�indeed.��We�have�had�a�really�great�discussion�

this�morning.��Thank�you�to�our�guests,�Leon,�Peter,�Spencer,�Ewan,�Faryal�and�Joan.��Thank�you�very�much�

indeed�for�your�insight�into�what�it�is�like�being�a�user�of�these�services.��We�have�really�appreciated�your�

contributions.��If�there�has�been�any�issue�that�you�wanted�to�get�in�today�and�we�have�not�asked�you,�please�

do�put�it�in�writing�to�us�to�feed�into�evidence�for�how�we�take�this�work�moving�forward.��

�

�

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:
Summary
List
of
Actions

 

Report
to:
 Transport
Committee





Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
10
December
2014




This
report
will
be
considered
in
public��
 





1.
 Summary



�

1.1� This�report�sets�out�the�actions�arising�from�previous�meetings�of�the�Transport�Committee.�




2.
 Recommendation�


2.1� That
the
Committee
notes
the
outstanding
actions
arising
from
previous
meetings
of
the


Committee.











Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
14
October
2014




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action



6.
 Mayor’s
London
Infrastructure
Plan
2050.



During�the�course�of�the�discussion,�the�Committee�

requested�the�following�additional�information�in�

writing:�

• Details�of�the�funding�that�the�Mini-Holland�
runner-up�boroughs�will�receive�to�improve�
cycling�in�their�localities;�and�

• Details�of�the�wider�plan�to�develop�cycling�
across�all�London�boroughs.�

The�Chair�has�written�to�

the�Mayor’s�Cycling�

Commissioner�to�

request�the�additional�

information.�

Mayor’s�Cycling�

Commissioner�


 During�the�course�of�the�discussion�the�Committee�

noted�that�the�Managing�Director,�Planning�for�

Transport�for�London�(TfL)�would�confirm�whether�

TfL’s�Transport�Innovation�Fund�submissions�on�road�

pricing�models�from�2006/07�were�available�in�the�

public�domain.


The�Chair�has�written�to�

the�Managing�Director,�

Planning,�TfL�to�request�

the�additional�

information.�

Managing�

Director,�Planning,�

TfL�



 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 47



        

Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
2
September
2014




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action



6.
 Taxi
and
Private
Hire
Services.

The�Committee�
noted�a�commitment�from�the�Deputy�Mayor�for�
Transport�to�provide�the�latest�position�on�Crossrail�
complementary�measures,�particularly�plans�for�taxi�
provision�at�stations.�

�

The�Chair�has�written�to�

the�Deputy�Mayor�for�

Transport�to�request�

the�additional�

information.�

Deputy�Mayor�for�

Transport�










Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
9
July
2014




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action



5.
 Taxi
and
Private
Hire
Services.

The�Committee�
requested�from�London�TravelWatch�details�of�any�
complaints�it�had�received�about�pedicabs.�

�

The�Chair�has�written�to�

London�TravelWatch�to�

request�the�additional�

information.�

London�

TravelWatch�







Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
5
February
2014




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action






6.
 Rail
in
London


The�Committee�requested�the�following�additional�

information�from�Network�Rail:�

• The�number�of�level�crossings�in�Greater�
London;�

• Background�information�on�the�cause�of�recent�
disruption�to�services�from�Hertford�and�Welwyn�
Garden�City�to�Moorgate;�and�

• Details�of�services�and�capacity�planned�during�
reconstruction�work�at�London�Bridge�station.





The�Chair�has�written�to�

Network�Rail�to�request�

the�additional�

information.�

Route�Managing�

Director�(London�

and�South�East),�

Network�Rail�


 The�Committee�requested�the�following�additional�

information�from�Transport�for�London�(TfL):�

• The�number�of�people�who�had�been�affected�
by�double�scanning�of�Oyster�cards�or�bank�
cards;�and�

• Details�of�the�case�that�the�Committee�can�
make�for�operating�international�services�from�
Stratford�International�station.�




The�Chair�has�written�to�

TfL�to�request�the�

additional�information.�

�

�

Director�of�

Customer�

Experience�and�

Head�of�Planning,�

TfL�

Page 48



        

Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
9
January
2014




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action






5.
 Pedestrian
Safety�

The�Committee�requested�the�following�additional�

information�from�Transport�for�London:�

• A�list�of�the�26�sites�on�the�Transport�for�
London�Road�Network�(TLRN)�where�studies�
were�underway�to�identify�appropriate�
pedestrian�safety�interventions;�

• Confirmation�on�whether�before�and�after�safety�
audits�were�undertaken�at�sites�where�the�
guardrail�was�removed;�

• Confirmation�of�whether�telephone�kiosks�were�
specifically�included�in�guidance�on�removal�of�
street�clutter�on�the�TLRN;�

The�Chair�has�written�to�

Transport�for�London�to�

request�the�additional�

information.�

Head�of�Delivery�

Planning,�Surface�

Transport,�

Transport�for�

London�


 • Confirmation�on�whether�there�was�before�and�
after�analysis�of�pedestrian�compliance�with�
signals�and�collision�rates�at�the�568�sites�where�
TfL�reduced�‘green�man�time’�since�2010�and,�if�
undertaken,�what�the�impact�had�been;�

• Details�of�the�boroughs�which�were�opposed�to�
the�introduction�of�pedestrian�countdown�at�
traffic�signals;�

• Confirmation�of�when�the�external�review�of�
TfL’s�road�safety�audit�procedures�(as�set�out�in�
the�Road�Safety�Action�Plan)�would�take�place�
and�whether�the�findings�would�be�made�public;�
and�

• Details�of�any�evaluation�of�the�impact�of�
Operation�Safeway�and�confirmation�of�how�TfL�
would�use�the�evaluation�to�inform�its�future�
work�on�pedestrian�safety.�

� �







Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
10
December
2013




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action






6.
 Cycling
in
London�

The�Committee�requested�further�information�from�

TfL�on�its�criteria�for�determining�when�to�install�20�

mile�per�hour�limits�on�its�road�network.��

The�Chair�has�written�to�

Transport�for�London�to�

request�the�additional�

information.�

Chief�Operating�

Officer,��

Surface�Transport,�

Transport�for�

London�







Page 49



        

3.
 Legal
Implications




3.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�

�

�

4.
 Financial
Implications

�

4.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:


None�

�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

�

Contact�Officer:� Dale�Langford,�Principal�Committee�Manager�
Telephone:� 020�7983�4415�

E-mail:� dale.langford@london.gov.uk�

Page 50



 

                                                                      

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:�Cycling
in
London
�

Report
to:
 Transport
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
10
December
2014


This
report
will
be
considered
in
public 






1.
 Summary




1.1� This�report�provides�background�information�to�the�Transport�Committee�in�relation�to�its�meeting�

with�invited�guests�to�discuss�cycling�in�London.�





2.
 Recommendations�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
report
and
puts
questions
on
cycling
in
London
to
the


invited
guests
and
notes
the
discussion.








3.
 Background




3.1� The�Committee�has�agreed�to�use�this�meeting�to�discuss�cycling�in�London.�This�will�cover�progress�

in�delivering�the�Mayor’s�Vision�for�Cycling�and�encouraging�more�people�to�make�journeys�by�bike,�

including�exploring�developments�with�the�Cycle�Superhighways,�Quietways�and�Mini-Holland�

programmes.��It�provides�an�opportunity�for�the�Committee�to�follow�up�its�previous�reports�and�
recommendations�including�its�report�on�improving�cyclists’�safety,�Gearing�Up�(November�2012)��

�

3.2� The�Mayor’s�Cycling�Commissioner�has�indicated�that�the�Cycling�Vision�is�now�moving�from�the�
planning�phase�to�the�delivery�phase.�Transport�for�London�(TfL)�has�recently�published�

consultations�on�key�elements�of�the�Vision�including�proposals�for�North-South�and�East-West�

Cycle�Superhighways.�The�proposals�have�faced�criticism�in�some�quarters,�including�from�the�City�of�
London,�for�failing�to�adequately�address�the�needs�of�other�road�users,�including�pedestrians.�

Delivery�of�many�of�the�key�elements�of�the�Vision�are�dependent�on�the�co-operation�of�London’s�

boroughs,�and�there�has�been�mixed�progress�in�overcoming�local�objections�to�proposed�changes.��
�

3.3� TfL�and�British�Cycling�signed�a�partnership�agreement�in�2014�to�work�together�to�increase�levels�

of�cycling�by�people�from�all�backgrounds�including�women,�disabled�cyclists�and�black,�Asian�and�
minority�ethnic�(BAME)�groups.�This�is�considered�to�be�an�important�step�in�meeting�the�Mayor’s�

target�of�a�5�per�cent�mode�share�for�cycling�in�the�capital�by�2026.��

�
�

�

�
�

Agenda Item 5

Page 51



        

 

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�

4.1 The�following�guests�have�been�invited�to�attend�this�meeting�to�discuss�cycling�in�London:��

• Andrew�Gilligan,�Mayor’s�Cycling�Commissioner;��

• Michael�Welbank�MBE,�Chair,�Planning�and�Transportation�Committee,�City�of�London�
Corporation;�

• Iain�Simmons,�Assistant�Director�City�Transportation,�City�of�London�Corporation;�

• Cllr�Julian�Bell,�Chair�of�Transport�and�Environment�Committee,�London�Councils;�

• Dr�Rachel�Aldred,�Senior�Transport�Lecturer,�University�of�Westminster�and�Chair�of�Policy�
Forum,�London�Cycling�Campaign;�

• Joe�Irvin,�Chief�Executive,�Living�Streets;�and�

• Chris�Boardman�MBE,�former�Olympic�Cycling�Champion�and�Policy�Advisor,�British�Cycling.�
�

4.2 Follow�this�meeting,�the�Committee�may�wish�to�produce�findings�on�progress�in�delivering�the�

Mayor’s�Vision�for�cycling�and�encouraging�more�people�to�cycle�in�London.���
�
�

5.
 Legal
Implications



5.1� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.






6.
 Financial
Implications

�
6.1� There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�
�
�
�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:



None.�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

�

Contact�Officer:� Lucy�Brant,�Assistant�Scrutiny�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�5727�

E-mail:� Lucy.Brant@london.gov.uk���

�

Page 52



 

                                                                      

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:
London
TravelWatch
Performance

Monitoring
Report


 

Report
to:
 Transport
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat�



Date:
10
December
2014




This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�

�




1.
 Summary



1.1 This�report�sets�out�the�report�of�the�Chief�Executive�of�London�TravelWatch�on�the�organisation’s�

performance�for�the�first�six�months�of�2014/15.�





2.
 Recommendations



2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
financial
outturn
position
of
London
TravelWatch
as
at


30
September
2014.


2.2 That
the
Committee
notes
the
performance
against
the
agreed
objectives
of
London


TravelWatch.





3.
 Background




3.1 This�paper�presents�the�report�of�the�Chief�Executive�of�London�TravelWatch�setting�out�the�

organisation’s�performance�for�the�first�six�months�of�2014/15�and�the�financial�position�as�at�

30�September�2014.��It�also�provides�a�high-level�summary�of�performance�against�London�

TravelWatch’s�suite�of�performance�indicators.��

�

3.2 The�Committee�is�asked�to�note�the�financial�position�as�at�30�September�2014�and�the�summary�of�

performance�against�the�currently�approved�suite�of�performance�indicators.�

�

3.3 The�regular�monitoring�of�delivery�against�the�key�objectives�featured�in�the�London�TravelWatch�

Corporate�Plan�will�enable�the�Committee�to�maintain�an�overview�of�London�TravelWatch’s�

performance�throughout�the�year.��The�Committee�is�asked�to�note�the�report.���

�




Agenda Item 6

Page 53



 

 

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration


�

4.1� The�report�of�the�Chief�Executive�of�London�TravelWatch�setting�out�the�organisation’s�performance�

for�the�first�six�months�of�2014/15�and�the�financial�position�as�at�30�September�2014�is�attached�

as�Appendix
1.�
�
�

5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 Under�Schedule�18�of�the�GLA�Act�1999�(as�amended),�the�Assembly�has�various�powers�and�duties�

in�respect�of�London�TravelWatch.�These�include�the�powers�to:�agree�London�TravelWatch’s�

budget,�appoint�members�of�the�London�TravelWatch�Board,�approve�officer�appointments�made�by�

London�TravelWatch,�receive�London�TravelWatch’s�accounts�and�audit�and,�under�s.251�of�the�GLA�

Act,�to�issue�guidance�and�directions�as�to�the�manner�in�which�London�TravelWatch�shall�exercise�

its�functions.��

�

5.2 The�Assembly�has�delegated�its�functions�in�respect�of�London�TravelWatch�to�the�Transport�

Committee.��

�

5.3 Under�s.34�of�the�GLA�Act�1999�(as�amended),�the�Assembly�may�do�anything�which�is�calculated�to�

facilitate,�or�is�conductive�or�incidental�to�the�exercise�of�any�of�the�functions�of�the�Assembly.�

�



6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�directly�from�this�report.�

�

�

��

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:

Appendix�1:�Performance�monitoring�report�from�the�Chief�Executive�of�London�TravelWatch�
�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

�

Contact�Officer:� Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�
Telephone:� 020�7983�4428�

E-mail:� mark.roberts@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 54



                             
 

 
 
    
London TravelWatch Performance Report, November 2014 

1. Introduction and highlights 

1.1. This report sets out details of London TravelWatch’s performance over the last six 

months and shows the financial position as at 30 September 2014, with 

developments to date included in the narrative where appropriate.  It confirms 

how London TravelWatch has met its key business plan objectives and the 

outcomes it has achieved for transport users as a result of its work.  

1.2. The report summarises the volume and type of casework activity handled by 

London TravelWatch during the period and includes a short overview of the main 

issues raised by the public.  

1.3. During the year, our Board members reviewed the organisation’s perspective on 
key transport policy areas to ensure that they remained up-to-date and relevant. 

 

1.4. We continued to concentrate our efforts on areas where we can make a 

measurable difference for the benefit of transport users. Our 2014 Annual Review 

highlighted our contributions to improving the transport experience for travellers in 

and around London, such as the work we did to make the case for sufficient 

public transport funding against the backdrop of an ever-increasing population.  

 

1.5. Highlights during the period included our report on improving public transport 

access to London’s airports, our public consultation on Transport for London’s 

(TfL) proposed ticket office changes and our research into what passengers think 

of value for money on London Overground services.  
 

1.6.       We continued to work collaboratively with the Transport Committee to coordinate 
work plans where possible. We met with as many Assembly Members as we 
could to learn about their concerns for transport users as we prepared our 
business plan for 2015-16.   

 
1.7.      We followed up on some of the key recommendations from the London Assembly 

Bus Scrutiny and incorporated the needs of bus passengers as part of our 
business plan priorities. In particular, we are developing an online bus community 
and have persuaded TfL to work more closely with us to improve their marketing 
and service information for both existing and potential passengers. We have 
recruited a Policy Officer with experience of community engagement to support 
our work with bus users. 

 
1.8.       After we expressed our concern that bus passengers lack targeted information, 

TfL are now using their Oyster data to provide detailed information by email about 
local routes to passengers who sign up for it. Our bus Policy Officer was a 

Appendix 1 

Page 55



keynote speaker at TfL’s seminar on bus priority where many of the issues raised 
by the London Assembly were highlighted and the session was chaired by the 
Chair of our Policy Committee, John Stewart.  

 
1.9. Planning our office move to Union Street has taken up a great deal of time in the 

period. We started work to upgrade the casework CRM computer software to 
ensure that our recording systems remain at a high standard. 

2. Financial Outturn  

2.1.   Part 1 of the Annex gives details of expenditure against budget as at the end 

of September 2014. There was an underspend of £31,000 on supplies and 

services primarily because there was very little spend against the research budget 

in the first half of year as we used existing evidence sources for our access to 

airports report and TfL funded the London Overground research. This budget is 

expected to be spent in the second half of the financial year. 

 

2.2. Accommodation costs are showing an underspend of £21,000 due to the delay in 

moving from the current Dexter House premises to Union Street where annual 

charges will be higher. 

2.3. There was an £11,000 underspend against the staff budget due to a slight delay 

in appointing to a vacant post, combined with a small saving achieved by 

developing a shared service arrangement to replace our Senior Finance Officer 

post when he retired. We expect the staffing budget to be fully spent this year. 

2.4. The factors outlined above have contributed to an overall underspend against the 

budget of £64,000. 

2.5. The Board had agreed to earmark £40,000 of the reserves to fund improvements 

to IT infrastructure and professional fees in respect of the office move in 2014-15.  

This spending has been postponed until after the office move but has been 

committed.  

Risk areas 

2.6. With a smaller staff complement, the principal risk for the future is that an 

unexpected and unavoidable rise in workload, which might be required to fulfil our 

statutory objectives, could not be accommodated without extra expenditure and 

without draining the reserves to an unacceptable level. We continue to mitigate 

this risk by building flexibility into our job descriptions and doing what we can to 

ensure transport users get timely advice that may avoid them contacting us 

unnecessarily.  

3. Progress against the business plan 

3.1. This section highlights progress against our key business plan objectives for the 
first six months of the financial year, demonstrating the impact our work has had 

Page 56



and the outcomes we have achieved for the travelling public. We had intended to 
publish a report on transport interchanges during this period. Work is underway 
on the report but it has not yet been published as other areas of work, particularly 
the report on access to airports, the contribution to the franchising programme 
and our consultation on ticket office changes, affected our ability to complete it. 
We will publish the interchanges report early in 2015. 

            New research 

3.2. We switched our business plan priorities to take the opportunity presented by the 
interim report of the Davies Commission and the findings of the London 
Assembly’s own report, to update, consolidate and publish our research into 
improving transport access to London’s airports. In September, we published our 
research demonstrating how public transport access to London’s five major 
airports could be improved by making better use of the infrastructure already in 
place.  The report called for improvements to surface access to London’s airports, 
which will benefit passengers by providing them with more choice and better 
value for money, making it easier to use public transport to get to London’s 
airports. Specific actions that London TravelWatch has identified include: 
 

• extending London’s Oyster/contactless payment ticketing system so that it 
covers journeys to and from all London’s airports and improving the range 
of National Rail tickets available to purchase at airport stations 

• improving customer service to ensure a joined-up approach at every stage 
of the passenger’s journey between the airport and their home 

• addressing legal and contractual barriers to allow Crossrail to serve 
Terminal 5 at Heathrow Airport from its opening in 2018 

• reducing the numbers of ‘empty’ taxi and private hire vehicles going to and 
from airports 

• improving connections by providing direct rail links from South London, 
North West Surrey and the Thames Valley to Heathrow Airport and 
providing investment to ensure that rolling stock is appropriate for service 
users. 

The report has been well-received and we have been invited to discuss it with the 
Davies Commission and with Robert Goodwill, the Minister for Aviation, as well as 
representatives from some of the airports. The Mayor has written to express his 
support for this work and to confirm that he has asked TfL to take up our 
recommendations with the industry. 

 
3.3. We decided to commission a consultation on TfL’s planned changes to ticket 

offices as an addition to our business plan because we were concerned that 
London Underground had no plans to consult passengers about how they might 
be affected. Our consultation asked people how they use ticket offices and about 
any difficulties they anticipate that they might have because of the proposed 
changes to help us to identify mitigation measures that could be implemented at 
their local stations.  We accepted TfL’s offer to fund Ipsos Mori, under our 

Page 57



independent control, to analyse the results. TfL put up our publicity posters at 
some (but by no means all) of their tube stations, on their website and in their 
regular Metro adverts. The survey was also publicised in the Evening Standard, 
local blogs, the local press, trade unions and via social media. We were 
particularly pleased with the publicity this was given by London Assembly 
Members. Each press release from Assembly Members produced a spike in 
numbers of people completing the survey. We received over 2,000 responses. 
The findings of our consultation, as well as a range of other evidence, were used 
to inform our initial response to TfL and were discussed at our Policy meeting in 
November.  We will carry out further analysis in the coming months and update 
our proposals in 2015. 
 

3.4. We completed our research into passenger views of value for money on London  
Overground services and published the report on our findings in October 2014. 
The report identified a number of actions that London Overground need to take to 
improve passenger perceptions of value for money including: 
 

• improving awareness of what London Overground offers by establishing 
line based sub-brands (similar to London Underground line names) 

• making ticket buying easier by improving fares information at stations and 
on the London Overground website and making ticket machines easier to 
use, including the ability to pay by cash 

• improving the travelling experience by making stations and trains more 
accessible, investing in further gating schemes and improving the amount 
and quality of information given to passengers, particularly in times of 
disruption and where multiple operators serve the same station 

• commissioning Passenger Focus to expand the National Rail Passenger 
Survey to cover all stations operated by London Overground and Greater 
Anglia which have never been surveyed, both before and after the change 
of concession in 2016  

• surveying smaller stations not previously surveyed but operated by 
National Rail operators in the London area at the same time to provide a 
benchmark against which to compare London Overground’s performance. 

Fares and ticketing 

3.5      We intervened when TfL announced that contactless payments would be 
extended to the Tube, DLR and London Overground in September but not to 
National Rail services in London that participate in Oyster pay as you go (PAYG). 
We urged TfL and train operating companies to work together to resolve the 
issues preventing the roll out, warning that failure to include National Rail in the 
scheme would be confusing and unfair to passengers. As a result of pressure 
from us and others, TfL managed to resolve these issues with National Rail 
operators and, in September, contactless payments were extended to National 
Rail services in London that participate in Oyster PAYG, in addition to the Tube, 
DLR and London Overground. 
 

Page 58



Franchising  

3.6      We continue to take all opportunities to influence the rail and TfL franchising   
process to achieve the best possible consumer benefit from new franchise 
arrangements within the London area. These included Crossrail 2; the ‘shadow’ 
concessions for London Rail for the period between the end of the DfT franchise 
and the start of the full Crossrail service; the DLR and London Overground 
concessions; Essex Thameside franchise; and the Thameslink, Southern and 
Great Northern (TSGN) franchise. 
 
 

3.7      We built on the work carried out during the previous period in parallel with  
 Passenger Focus to provide confidential comment to the DfT on the passenger 

facing elements of the different bids to help them assess the bids.  We followed 
this up through senior-level meetings with Southeastern and the DfT where we 
made recommendations to them about the Direct Award and the potential 
improvements which could be made for passengers, many of which were included. 
We argued for the Direct Award to include more services between Dartford and 
Victoria, a commitment to extra staffing at stations and the extension of Oyster to 
Dartford and Swanley.  
 
  

 Campaigning 

3.8       We have long been concerned about passengers having accidents because of the 
often excessive gaps between trains and platforms at London stations and have 
regularly raise these issues with key stakeholders, particularly the Office of Rail 
Regulation (ORR) and Network Rail. We are starting to see a shift of emphasis in 
the industry and  last year the ORR acknowledged this as an issue in its 2013/14 
Annual Health and Safety Report and the industry is now establishing initiatives 
and programmes to deal with this risk. 

 
3.9       We have responded to consultations to the Mayor’s cycling vision schemes,  

including the most recent cycle superhighways proposals from our perspective of 
representing all the users of London’s streets. We have always been supportive of 
more and safer cycling but expressed concerns about the impact on other road 
users, particularly bus passengers, pedestrians and disabled people.  We continue 
to press TfL to do further work to analyse the impact on bus journey times of 
change to the road network and to publish this data. 
  

3.10 We added our voice to those calling for improvements to the Tottenham Court 
Road area for many years as it suffers from congestion on both its roads and 
pavements.  Tottenham Court Road will see a huge increase in activity after the 
opening of the Crossrail station in 2018. We welcomed the fact that Camden 
Council is now working on a scheme to transform the area and has recently put its 
plans out to consultation. The plans would represent a great improvement, which 
we hope would alleviate congestion on both roads and pavements, with wider 
pavements for pedestrians, improved conditions for cyclists and shorter journey 
times for most bus routes. In addition, it would improve access to the Tube 
stations on Tottenham Court Road as both north and south bound buses would 
serve them directly. 

Page 59



3.11 We submitted a petition to Parliament against the HS2 Bill in May 2014 in order to 
ensure that the impact it would have for London’s travelling public is properly 
considered in the planning process, especially in the Euston area, and on 
passengers’ access to connecting transport services. 

4         Communications and public engagement 

4.1.       We continued to open our Board and committee meetings to the public. We 
    discussed current issues for transport users, explored problems and looked at 
    future services at our meetings. Topics during this period included London  

Underground’s vision for the tube and ticket offices, rail franchise awards, 
proposals for Crossrail 2, river crossings, cycle highway schemes and 
buses. We continued to live tweet at our Board meetings to provide the public the 
opportunity to raise issues with us.  
 

4.2.     We sought meetings with key politicians and senior civil servants to promote 
better outcomes for the travelling public. Of particular value was the opportunity 
to share our priorities and concerns with the Minister for Transport, Baroness 
Kramer, who was very interested in matters relating to improving transport 
accessibility and keen to hear about examples of good practice in London which 
could be promoted more widely.  

 
4.3.      During the period, we attended the London Pensions Fund Authority’s Annual 
            Member Forum at the Southbank Centre and spoke to attendees about transport 

issues. 
 

5. Casework  

5.1. During the first half of 2014-2015, our casework team dealt with over 3,000 
written and telephone enquiries and complaints, which is similar to the same 
period last year. Most of these could be dealt with quickly or passed on to the 
operator for an initial reply, as we only investigate cases where the complainant 
has not already received an adequate response. The issues raised with our 
casework team remain fairly consistent and include service performance, delays 
and early departures, penalty fares, lack of available information at point of travel 
and complaint handling by operators. 

 
5.2. In the six months to the end of September, we investigated 583 appeals from 

members of the public travelling in London and the surrounding areas. We keep 
detailed management records which confirm that our performance continues to 
exceed key targets. 

 
5.3. We achieved a notable success at Waterloo National Rail station after being 

contacted by a passenger who could not purchase the cheapest ticket at the 
ticket vending machine. The passenger knew that the ticket offered was not the 
cheapest and had to go to the ticket office in order to purchase it. London 
TravelWatch appealed the case because the passenger should have been able 
to purchase the correct ticket from a machine and other passengers would not 
know that there was a cheaper alternative to travel on the same train at the same 
time. Also at Waterloo, the ticket machines did not sell promotional tickets and, 

Page 60



again, this did not help passengers who were unaware of their options.  South 
West Trains have since taken steps to improve their ticket machines.  Their 
promotional tickets are now available and the machines indicate the availability of 
travelcards. 

 
5.4. Of the casework we received which required further investigation, 64% related to 

National Rail, 9% related to buses, 6% related to London Underground, and 1% 
to London Overground, with the remaining relating to other issues, such as 
Oyster. A large proportion of journeys in and around London are multi-modal and 
some appeals need us to negotiate with more than one transport operator.  
Similarly, a lot of casework continues to include Oyster ticketing issues as Oyster 
is used across the entire London Network. 

 

        
Janet Cooke 
Chief Executive, 
London TravelWatch 
26 November 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Links to London TravelWatch research documents: 

 

1. Improving public transport access to London’s airports (September 2014) 

http://www.londontravelwatch.org.uk/documents/get_lob?id=3894&field=file 

 

2. Value for money on London Overground – what passengers think (October 2014) 

http://www.londontravelwatch.org.uk/documents/get_lob?id=3896&field=file 

 

3. Consultation on Transport for London’s (TfL) proposed ticket office changes 

(November 2014) 

http://www.londontravelwatch.org.uk/documents/get_lob?id=3909&age=&field=file  
 

 
 

  

Page 61



Annex: Performance Information 
 
 
1. Financial performance 

 
The financial position as at the end of September 2014 is summarised below: 

 

 Original 
Budget 
(Year to 

date) 

Revised 
Budget 
(Year to 

date) 

Actual 
Spend/ 
Income 
to date 

Variance 
against 
revised 
budget 
(Year to 

date) 

 £ £ £ £ 

          

REVENUE EXPENDITURE      

Chair, Members & Staff Costs  398,000             398,000 387,000 (11,000) 

Accommodation costs 73,000 73,000 52,000 (21,000) 

Supplies & Services 68,000 68,000 37,000 (31,000) 

Depreciation  15,000 15,000 14,000 (1,000) 

     

Total Revenue Expenditure 554,000 554,000 490,000 (64,000) 

      

      

Total Capital & Revenue 
Expenditure 

554,000 554,000 490,050 (64,000) 

      

      

INCOME     

Greater London Authority 
Funding 

528,000 528,000 528,000 0 

Passenger Focus 0 0 2,000 (2,000) 

Bank Interest Receivable  0 0 0 0 

Other income 1,000 1,000 0  1,000 

      

Total Income 529,000 529,000 530,000 (1,000) 

      

      

Earmarked transfer from 
general reserves  

               40,000   

 
 

Note:  Commentary relating to London TravelWatch’s financial performance is set out in 
section 2 of the preceding report. 

 
 
 

 

Page 62



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:�Transport
Committee
Work
Programme�

Report
to:
 Transport
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
10
December
2014�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�
 



1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�the�work�programme�for�2014/15.�





2.
 Recommendations�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
its
work
programme
for
2014/15,
as
set
out
in
this
report.




2.2 That
the
Committee
delegates
authority
to
the
Chair
to
agree,
in
consultation
with
party


Group
Lead
Members,
the
Committee’s
report
on
taxi
and
private
hire
services
and
a


response
to
Network
Rail’s
consultation
on
the
draft
Anglia
Route
Study.




2.3 That
the
Committee
notes:





(a) The
letter
from
the
Transport
Commissioner
following
up
the
Committee’s
response


on
the
Safer
Lorries
Scheme
consultation,
as
set
out
at
Appendix
1;





(b) The
response
to
the
Chiltern
Railways
consultation
on
the
proposed
changes
to
its


draft
timetable,
as
set
out
at
Appendix
2;
and




(c) The
letter
from
London
City
Airport
following
up
the
Committee’s
joint
response


with
the
Environment
Committee
on
the
London
Airspace
Management
Programme

consultation,
as
set
out
at
Appendix
3.








3.
 Background





3.1 The�Committee�receives�a�report�monitoring�the�progress�of�its�work�programme�at�each�meeting.��

�
��

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
4.1 The�table�overleaf�sets�out�the�remaining�scheduled�dates�of�the�Committee’s�meetings�in�2014/15�

and�lists�the�main�topic�proposed�for�each�meeting�at�this�stage.��The�topics�for�future�meetings�are�

subject�to�change�as�the�Committee�develops�proposals�for�its�work.��The�work�programme�also�

provides�for�the�Committee�to�respond�to�any�matters�that�arise�at�short�notice.   �
�

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 63



        

Transport
Committee
meeting
date




Proposed
topic(s)


Wednesday�14�January�2015� Crossrail�and�Crossrail�2�

Wednesday�25�February�2015� Q&A�with�Transport�for�London�

Wednesday�18�March�2015� Future�ticketing�

�


Topics
identified
for
the
work
programme


4.2 The�following�paragraphs�provide�further�details�of�the�main�topics�that�the�Committee�has�
identified�for�2014/15.��The�Committee�has�a�rolling�work�programme�so�it�is�always�possible�for�

some�topics�to�be�explored�in�subsequent�years.�

�
Future
of
the
Tube


4.3 The�Committee�used�its�meeting�in�June�2014�to�explore�the�future�of�the�Tube�including:�recent�

progress�with�Tube�upgrades�and�the�future�milestones;�the�performance�of�the�Tube;�and�proposals�
for�the�Tube�to�run�at�night�from�autumn�2015.�The�Committee�followed�up�this�meeting�with�a�site�

visit�in�July�and�a�video�conference�call�with�the�New�York�City�Transit�in�August�to�identify�any�

lessons�London�could�learn�from�the�operation�and�upgrade�of�the�subway�in�New�York.��The�
Committee�published�its�findings�from�this�work,�in�the�form�of�a�letter�to�the�Mayor,�in�

October�2014.��

�
Taxi
and
private
hire



4.4 The�Committee�used�its�meetings�in�July�and�September�2014�to�gather�evidence�for�its�

investigation�into�taxi�and�private�hire�services�in�London.��The�Committee�has�also�commissioned�
surveys�of�taxi�and�private�hire�users�and�drivers,�obtained�written�submissions,�undertaken�a�site�

visit,�and�held�a�separate�meeting�with�taxi�and�private�hire�stakeholders�to�obtain�further�views�and�

information.��The�Committee�is�now�producing�its�report�setting�out�its�findings�and�
recommendations�on�taxi�and�private�hire�services.��It�is�proposed�that�the�Committee�delegate�

authority�to�the�Chair,�in�consultation�with�party�Group�Lead�Members,�to�agree�the�report�to�enable�

its�publication�shortly�after�this�meeting.��
�

Mayor’s
2050
Infrastructure
Plan


4.5 The�Committee�used�its�meeting�in�October�to�explore�the�transport�aspects�of�the�Mayor’s�draft�

2050�Infrastructure�Plan.�The�Committee�has�subsequently�produced�a�response�to�the�consultation�
on�the�draft�2050�Infrastructure�Plan.��

 

Door-to-door
transport


4.6 The�Committee�used�its�meeting�in�November�to�explore�the�current�operation�of�Dial-a-Ride�and�

other�door-to-door�transport�services�and�the�future�developments�for�these�services.�Minutes�from�
this�meeting�are�considered�under�separate�item�on�the�agenda�for�this�meeting.�

 

Cycling


4.7 At�this�meeting�the�Committee�will�discuss�cycling.�This�will�provide�an�opportunity�to�follow�up�the�

Committee’s�past�work�on�cyclists’�safety�including�its�reports�Gearing�Up�(November�2012)�and�
Cycling�in�London�–�an�update�(February�2014)�and�its�discussion�about�recent�developments�with�

cycling�projects�at�its�last�meeting.��

�
4.8 The�Committee�responded�to�TfL’s�consultations�on�the�draft�cycle�safety�action�plan�and�draft�

London�Cycling�Design�Standards�in�July�2014.��The�Committee�is�also�responding�to�TfL’s�

Page 64



        

consultations�on�the�proposals�for�new�north-south�and�east-west�Superhighways�and�upgrades�to�

existing�Cycle�Superhighway�2.�



Crossrail


4.9 It�is�proposed�that�the�Committee�explores�progress�with�Crossrail�at�its�meeting�in�January�2015.�

The�Committee�has�checked�on�progress�with�the�development�of�Crossrail�each�year�since�it�

published�its�report�on�Crossrail�in�February�2010.���



Future
ticketing


4.10 It�is�proposed�that�the�Committee�could�also�explore�future�ticketing�arrangements�at�its�meeting�in�
January�2015.�TfL�introduced�contactless�bankcard�payment�on�buses�in�July�and�on�other�modes�in�

September�2014.�This�meeting�will�provide�an�opportunity�for�the�Committee�to�follow�up�its�past�

work�on�ticketing�including�its�report�The�Future�of�Ticketing�(November�2011).�
�

Question
and
answer
session
with
TfL


4.11 It�is�proposed�that�the�Committee�uses�its�meeting�in�February�2015�for�a�question�and�answer�

session�with�the�Commissioner�of�TfL.�These�sessions�provide�an�opportunity�to�explore�a�range�of�
transport�issues,�TfL�Board�and�Committee�discussions�and�decisions,�and�follow�up�topics�which�the�

Committee�has�covered�in�its�past�reports�and�recommendations.�

�
Rapporteurship
on
TfL
customer
service


4.12 The�GLA�Oversight�Committee�agreed�on�23�July�2014�to�appoint�Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM�as�

rapporteur�to�follow�up�her�previous�investigation�into�TfL’s�customer�service�(January�2012).�This�
investigation�is�focusing�on�TfL’s�progress�in�improving�its�customer�service�including�in�developing�

a�single�customer�charter.1�The�rapporteur�is�gathering�views�and�information�for�this�investigation.��



Responses
to
transport-related
consultations


4.13 A�letter�has�been�received�from�the�Transport�Commissioner�following�the�Committee’s�response�to�

TfL’s�Safer�Lorries�Scheme�consultation.��The�letter�is�attached�at�Appendix
1.��The�Committee�
recently�responded�to�TfL’s�consultation�on�a�proposed�extension�of�the�London�Overground�to�

Barking�Riverside.��The�Committee�will�also�be�responding�to�TfL’s�current�consultation�on�the�

proposed�extension�of�the�Bakerloo�line�south�from�Elephant�&�Castle.�
�

4.14 Network�Rail�is�currently�consulting�on�a�number�of�draft�route�studies,�which�set�out�strategic�plans�

for�rail�services�in�different�regions.�The�Committee�has�agreed�to�respond�to�the�Sussex�area�route�
study.�It�is�also�proposed�that�the�Committee�delegate�authority�to�the�Chair�to�agree�any�

Committee�response�to�the�draft�Anglia�route�study,�in�consultation�with�Party�Group�Lead�

Members.��Chiltern�Railways�has�launched�a�consultation�on�proposed�changes�to�its�timetable2.��The�
Committee�is�asked�to�note�the�response�to�the�proposed�timetable�changes,�agreed�by�the�Chair�

under�delegated�Authority,�attached�at�Appendix
2.�
�

4.15 The�Committee�has�received�a�letter�from�London�City�Airport�following�the�Committee’s�joint�

response�with�the�Environment�Committee�to�the�London�City�Airport�consultation�on�the�London�

Airspace�Management�Programme.��The�response�is�attached�at�Appendix
3.��At�its�meeting�on�19�
November,�the�Assembly�agreed�to�write�to�the�Secretary�of�State�for�Transport�and�Civil�Aviation�

Authority�to�express�concerns�about�the�consultation�process.�





                                                 
1�Full�report�at:�http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Customer%20Service%20Report%20-%20FINAL%20DRAFT.pdf��
2�http://www.chilternrailways.co.uk/news/september-2015-timetable-consultation��

Page 65



        

Responses
to
recent
Transport
Committee
work�

4.16 This�section�of�the�work�programme�provides�details�of�any�responses�due�from�the�Mayor,�TfL�

and/or�others�to�Committee�work.��
�

�

�
�





5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�
�

�

6.
 Financial
Implications�


6.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:
�

Appendix�1:�Letter�from�Transport�Commissioner�re�Safer�Lorries�Scheme�

Appendix�2:�Consultation�response�to�Chiltern�Railways�

Appendix�3:�Letter�from�London�City�Airport�re�London�Airspace�Management�Programme�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� Richard�Berry,�Scrutiny�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4199�

Email:� richard.berry@london.gov.uk�

�

Transport
Committee
work
 Details
of
responses
due
(if
appropriate)


The�Future�of�the�Tube�(October�2014)�

�

The�Committee�requested�a�response�from�the�

Mayor�and/or�TfL�on�23�October�2014.�

Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Appendix 2 
Caroline	Pidgeon	AM,	Chair	of	the	Transport	Committee	
	

London	Assembly	

City	Hall	

The	Queen’s	Walk	

London,	SE1	2AA	

	
	
	
	
�
	
	
	
Dear	Mr	Brighouse,	
�
I	am	writing	on	behalf	of	the	London	Assembly’s	Transport	Committee	to	set	out	our	response	to	

Chiltern	Railway’s	consultation	on	the	proposed	changes	to	its	draft	timetable.		

This	response	draws	on	our	previous	work	on	rail	services	in	London	including	our	response	to	

Network	Rail’s	London	and	South	East	Market	Study	Draft	consultation.		Further	details	of	all	our	

work	can	be	found	online	at:	https://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-

assembly/publications/transport		

Consultation�

The	information	available	on	Chiltern	Railway’s	website	fails	to	make	it	clear	to	passengers	how	they	

will	be	affected	by	the	proposed	changes	to	the	timetable.		The	Committee	recommends	that	clear	

information	on	specific	changes	is	made	available	on	Chiltern’s	website	and	at	individual	stations.	

Overcrowding�

Recent	estimates	suggest	that	London’s	population	will	approach	ten	million	by	20301.		This	would	

place	huge	demands	on	London’s	rail	infrastructure	and	could	mean	that	overcrowding	could	be	

worse	than	previously	forecast.				

Growing	employment	in	London	will	also	need	to	be	supported.	There	are	forecast	to	be	850,000	

more	jobs	in	London	by	2036	and	the	distribution	of	employment	in	London	makes	rail	an	

increasingly	popular	choice	of	transport	for	commuters	from	both	within	and	outside	London	(people	

living	outside	the	capital	hold	around	one	in	six	London	jobs	—800,000	jobs	in	2011).		It	is	therefore	

essential	for	London’s	economy	that	rail	continues	to	be	an	attractive	way	of	getting	to	work.			

Increasing	the	frequency	of	rail	services	into	London	would	provide	more	capacity	and	help	reduce	

future	overcrowding.		The	Committee	would	urge	Chiltern	Railways	to	consider	this	point	when	

making	changes	to	its	timetable.		

Issues�around�specific�services�

Assembly	Members	and	the	Mayor	of	London	have	previously	raised	concerns	about	the	availability	
and	frequency	of	Chiltern	services	through	Sudbury	stations.	In	relation	to	the	current	consultation,	
the	Committee	has	received	further	representation	to	suggest	that	very	little	change	to	Sudbury	

																																																	
1
 Mayor of London, 2020 Vision, p. 12 

6�November�2014	

Rob	Brighouse	
Chiltern	Railways	
2nd	floor,	Western	House	
Rickfords	Hill,	Aylesbury	
Buckinghamshire	
HP20	2RX	

Page 69



services	is	being	proposed.	We	would	urge	Chiltern	to	reconsider	how	you	can	deliver	improvements	
for	passengers	in	this	area.	
	
Yours	sincerely	
	
	
�
�
�
Caroline�Pidgeon�
Chair	of	the	Transport	Committee	

Page 70



Page 71



Page 72


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1 - Transcript

	4 Summary List of Actions
	5 Cycling in London
	6 London TravelWatch Performance Monitoring Report
	Appendix 1 - Report from London TravelWatch

	7 Transport Committee Work Programme
	Appendix 1 - Letter from Transport Commissioner re Safer Lorries Scheme
	Appendix 2 - Chiltern Railways Consultation Response
	Appendix 3 - Response from City Airport


